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Consolidated Income Statement

HZE2012F12A31HILFE
Year ended 31 December 2012

2012 2011
Kt FET FET
Note Uss’000 US$'000
20 Turnover 6 9,211,852 7,866,580
SHE R A Cost of sales (6,457,364) (5,778,611)
EF Gross profit 2,754,488 2,087,969
o U as B B b F UL A Other revenue and other net income 8 344,767 169,905
2 $HRK AN Distribution costs (1,866,012) (1,322,975)
1T E A Administrative expenses (302,040) (189,215)
HEmgEsE A Other operating expenses (74,604) (73,336)
B5E A Finance costs 9 (32,673) (9,372)
JE{GEE L & ZATRI¥AE  Share of results of associates
and jointly controlled entities 3,966 —
BRBEADRER Profit before taxation 9 827,892 662,976
AL Taxation 11 (227,763) (163,272)
AR F R F Profit for the year 600,129 499,704
FERELER Attributable to:
ZIN/NGT 3 Owners of the Company 455,171 419,545
DERERRR Non-controlling interests 144,958 80,159
REERF Profit for the year 600,129 499,704
FREF Earnings per share 14
HR Basic US8.14 cents US7.51 cents
e Diluted US8.11 cents US7.47 cents

]4 \ Aoz ERAT TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

HE2012F 12831 ALFE
Year ended 31 December 2012

2012 2011
FET FET
Us$000 US$°000
A F R F Profit for the year 600,129 499,704
Hit 2 HE WK : Other comprehensive income:
M X EE Exchange differences on consolidation 28,057 131,746
AEHESREER Fair value changes in
hEZE available-for-sale financial assets 3,407 (16,733)
REAIRNHERTEHE Reclassification adjustments relating to
ERMEEEDFAE available-for-sale financial assets
disposed of during the year 4,656 —
REEFHEEER Reclassification adjustment for exchange
BNEH =5 differences released upon disposal of
ZENEAE assets classified as held for sale — (3,847)
BHerFEHM2EKE Other comprehensive income for
the year, net of tax 36,120 111,166
RErFELXERGZEE Total comprehensive income for
the year, net of tax 636,249 610,870
Eh2EKE : Attributable to:
P N/NG] 8 Owners of the Company 481,891 498,176
DERE R R Non-controlling interests 154,358 112,694
636,249 610,870
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

R2012912A31H
At 31 December 2012

2012 2011
i3 FET FET
Note uUs$’ooo Us$°000
BE ASSETS
IRBEE Non-current assets
YZE - R R Property, plant and equipment 15 5,001,736 4,029,872
B AE Intangible assets 16 28,811 —
kN e Interest in associates 18 21,324 —
EE N AR Interest in jointly controlled entities 19 63,114 —
T H AR E Prepaid lease payments 20 284,040 186,276
At ESmEE Available-for-sale financial assets 21 55,032 104,422
ERERIRE E Deferred tax assets 33 50,774 52,176
5,504,831 4,372,746
RBEE Current assets
BN F BEY R M AEIB R Financial assets at fair value through
BRENCRIEE profit or loss 22 640 560
FE Inventories 23 478,113 312,562
JE W BR K Trade receivables 24 233,104 155,040
TE B R E A EUFRIE  Prepayments and other receivables 25 418,677 367,814
EIRITER Pledged bank deposits 27 7,673 9,662
IRITEERNIR S Bank balances and cash 27 830,225 590,390
1,968,432 1,436,028
HWEE Total assets 7,473,263 5,808,774
BREEZEREE EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
B A R & Capital and reserves
BT Issued capital 28 27,964 27,951
& Reserves 2,522,969 2,071,794
AABRRELER Total capital and reserves attributable
to owners of the Company 2,550,933 2,099,745
DYRRE R Non-controlling interests 946,312 586,521
IR R BT Total equity 3,497,245 2,686,266

76 ‘ RetizERAE TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.



=

| FRE AR R Consolidated Statement of Financial Position /
201249128318
At 31 December 2012

2012 2011
k3 FET FETT
Note Us$000 Us$’000
FREBEE Non-current liabilities
REBEEE Long-term interest-bearing borrowings 31 984,761 549,382
HEMIEREBEE Other non-current liabilities 220 —
BTEMNEE Employee benefit obligations 32 18,060 14,064
BIEFIRAE Deferred tax liabilities 33 178,466 131,092
1,181,507 694,538
REBEE Current liabilities
FERTBR IR Trade payables 34 1,043,295 974,113
H A B 5RIE Other payables 35 1,110,292 660,995
£ BEBE 2N G Current portion of
interest-bearing borrowings 31 499,711 700,695
BPIEMNKIE Advance payments from customers 82,294 66,501
TIE Taxation 58,919 25,666
2,794,511 2,427,970
waE Total liabilities 3,976,018 3,122,508
RREZREE Total equity and liabilities 7,473,263 5,808,774
ERBEE Net current liabilities (826,079) (991,942)
HWEERRBEE Total assets less current liabilities 4,678,752 3,380,804

MR2013F 3 18HEEE S L& R BEE Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 18
®E March 2013

FLFEIN Wei Ing-Chou
E & Director

H M Takeshi Ida
ZEF Director
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Statement of Financial Position

R2012912A31H
At 31 December 2012

2012 2011
i3 FET FET
Note Us$’ooo Us$°000
BE ASSETS
RBEE Non-current assets
MZ - e & Property, plant and equipment 15 72 99
SN Interest in subsidiaries 17 766,667 504,494
ARt ESmEE Available-for-sale financial assets 21 19,475 66,389
786,214 570,982
RBEE Current assets
BARBEIIERR Financial assets at fair value through
FEEREENSRIEE profit or loss 22 640 560
TE B R A EULFRIE  Prepayments and other receivables 25 793 992
FEN KT A R FRIE Amounts due from a subsidiary 26 310,000 160,000
IRTT#EEER NIR S Bank balances and cash 34,401 6,396
345,834 167,948
wmEE Total assets 1,132,048 738,930
BREREZEREE EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
BAR#E Capital and reserves
BT Issued capital 28 27,964 27,951
i Reserves 29 259,491 277,413
BRERALE Total equity 287,455 305,364
FRENEE Non-current liabilities
RHAEEEE Long-term interest-bearing borrowings 31 764,136 205,000
BITRMNEE Employee benefit obligations 32 9,441 8,425
773,577 213,425
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/ BI#&ARSRER Statement of Financial Position /
720124912 A31H
At 31 December 2012

2012 2011
k3 FET FZET
Note uUs$’ooo Us$°000
REBEE Current liabilities
FEATBRFK Trade payables 34 2,192 2,154
H b BT 5RIE Other payables 35 18,824 12,987
£ BEE 2RV G Current portion of
interest-bearing borrowings 31 50,000 205,000
71,016 220,141
waE Total liabilities 844,593 433,566
BRRERRAE Total equity and liabilities 1,132,048 738,930
BFRBEE(AR) Net current assets (liabilities) 274,818 (52,193)
BEERRBEES Total assets less current liabilities 1,061,032 518,789

M2013F3 A18HKEEE g & RIx#E Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 18

= March 2013
ZHFEM Wei Ing-Chou H# M2 Takeshi Ida
ZEZ Director ZEZ Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HZE2012F12A31HILFE
Year ended 31 December 2012

FAR%ES
Attributable to owners of the Company
L0
xER
X5k Rak
Tt ke #E  Transactions BE  JHRR
e i BREGE ZEEEE  withnon Totel & [t
BRE  Gptdl  REEE  bdenge  -HEE  Shaebased Ivestment  contolng  REEA il Non-  EREE
Issued  redemption Share  transaion ~ Generl  payment  revaluation  interests  Retained and  controling Total
aptl resene  pemim reene  rene  sene  resene  resene  pofs resenes interests equy
#r B Hr o o Br Hr #r #Brn Hr B
Ussoon Ussooo - Ussooe Ussoo0 Ussoe0 Ossoo0 ussom ssooe ussooo ussoae Ossoo0 Lo
R01F1518 At 1 January 2011 27934 I 29180 298 265,689 8050 11,109 = OH38 181258 M799 2369187
REEHH Aot for theyer - - - - - - - — NS M9NS I 4T
ELETTI Other comprehensive income
EizE Bxchange diffeences
on consolcation = = = 97322 = = = = = 9130 Aa4 13174
TitHEsHEE Fairvalue changes n
DrEZED avalableorsale
finandial assets = = = = = = (16,733) = = (16,733) = (16,733)
REFLERER Redassficaton adjustments for
BHERZEZBREEE  ochenge diffeences eeased
upon disposal of assets
lassified as held for sale - - - (1.958) - - - - - (1.958) (1.889) (3847)
Ah2EYELE Total other comprehensive
income = = = 95304 = = (16,733) = = 18631 3253 111,166
KEE2ENEEE Total comprehensive income
for the year = = = 95,304 = = (16,733) = N9x5  A%176 12694 610870
HANARRZRA Transactions with owners of
the Company:
BREERBIOZZE  Fouity settedshare-based
transactions = = = = = 13349 = = = 13349 = 13349
REBREAEETIRG  Shareisued under share
option scheme 17 = 1557 = = (2,003) = = = 5571 = 5571
BR010ERERS 2010 final dividend paid = - (19264) = = = = = (45985 (238609)  (62916)  (301,529)
ERE-RER Transfer to general resene - - - - 6540 - - - (6540 - - -
HE-FH2EREL  Realiation ondisposalofa
EAEIE non-holly owned subsidary
AR previously cassfied
BEBEIFELZR)  asasetheldforsae - - - - B9 - - - 30 — (s (1118
ERDARRZRGEE  Total transactions with
owners of the Company 17 —  (185067) = 6231 11,346 = —  (1083%6) (19689 (7410  (93,791)
RONENANA At 31 December 2011 27951 I 106,213 316657 328060 19,3% (5,624) = 1300047 2099745 586521 2,686,266
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| BRERREREZER Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity /

HE2012F12A31AILFE
Year ended 31 December 2012

KOARRES
Attributable to owners of the Company
#8
RRiEs
R5Ek RAR
v hag RE Transactions B JUER
REGR g BREGE ERERE  withnon- Total B BR
BARE  Captdl  REEE  Echenge  —BEE Sharebased Investment controling  REEA  capital Non-  EHER
Issued  redemption Share  translation ~ General  payment revaluation interests  Retained and  controlling Total
capital  reserve  premium  reserve  reseve  feseve reserve reserve profits  reserves interests equity
#r o o o o o o AR o o o
Ussooo  Ussopo - Ussoo0 UsSo0 USSOBD USSOO0  UsSORD USSOO0 UsSOd0 USSOG0 UsSd0 UsSSU0D
RNNE151R At 1 January 2012 27,951 45 106,213 316,657 328,060 19,39 (5,624) = 1307087 2,099,745 586,521 2,686,266
KERR Profit or the year - - - - - - - — LI ST 198 60010
Aft2E0E Other comprehensive income
EfzE Exchange iffeences
on consolidation - - - 18,657 - - - - - 18,657 9,400 28,057
THHESHER Fairvale changes n
MEEY aalablefor<al fiancia assets - - - - - Y - - 3w -
RUERIEERR Reclassfication adjustments relating
BHERZEZEREEE toavalable-forsale finandl
assets disposed of n the year - - - - - - 4,65 - - 4,65 - 4,65
Af2EYE4E Total other comprehensive
income - - - 18,657 - - 8,063 - - 26,720 9,400 36,120
KEERTNELE Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - 18,657 - - 8,063 - 45511 481,891 154,358 636,249
HANARRZRA Transactions with owners
of the Company:
BREERORAZZE  Fouiyseted share-based
transactions - - - - - 1373 - - - 1373 - 1373
S L Nor-controling nterests rsing
VaRRER fiom a busiess combinaton - - - - - - - - - - 65 1654
REEREAT Deemed disposalofinteest
ina subsiciary - - - - - - - 165,548 - 165548 24748 390,291
FEBREAETZRA  Sharesisued undershare
option scheme 13 - 48M - - (1,033) - - - 381 - 38
EHINERERE 01 fireldidendpad - - - - - - — T ) GR0%)  (M78m)
BRL-FEE Transfer to general resere - - - - M - - - (M) - - -
WERENKBLAEE  Acouistion of addifonelequity
Interests in subsicaries - - - - - - - (4118) - (a118) 28 (1.870)
ERDARRZAZAE  Total transactions with owners
of the Company 3 - (39,557) - 319 12,690 - 161430 (03071) (30703 205433 174730
R012E12F31A At 31 December 2012 27,94 [ 6665 335314 36585 3,08 2439 161430 1,559,147 2550933 96312 3497245
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HZE2012F12A31HILFE
Year ended 31 December 2012

2012 2011
Htat FET F=ET
Note us$’ooo Us$°000
KeEEE OPERATING ACTIVITIES
KEXEBEHR S Cash generated from operations 36 1,351,999 739,353
BB CEMER The People’s Republic of China (“PRC")
enterprise income tax paid (159,145) (135,858)
¥ PS) Interest paid (36,904) (12,871)
RETBRBRSFHE Net cash from operating activities 1,155,950 590,624
REZEH INVESTING ACTIVITIES
2 UF S Interest received 48,405 38,564
=il Dividend income received 1,595 1,573
EBE SR FHE Net cash inflow on business combination 38 123,296 —
HEZRARBETIRR Proceeds on disposal of financial assets
ri8m R I B at fair value through profit or loss
CREEZMMF — 191
BARAABEIERK Purchase of financial assets at fair value
FIENERENESHMEE  through profit or loss — (115)
HEHEE Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale
SRMEE S financial assets 63,323 —
BARMHTESREE Purchase from available-for-sale
financial assets (8,967) (8,496)
HE—RIEZEMBAR  Proceeds from disposal of a non-wholly
R —FEt & N a (PART owned subsidiary and an associate
WA ABIELEEE) previously classified as held for sale
Z e — 88,500
A - s MG Purchase of property, plant and equipment (838,925) (1,327,420)
BT T AR (B Prepaid lease payments (38,366) (85,262)
HEME - WEENRER  Proceeds from sale of property, plant and
TR A B 2 S equipment and prepaid lease payments 4,476 52,648
A E N a R IE Payments for interests in jointly
controlled entities (13,710) =
RETBHFARSFEE Net cash used in investing activities (658,873) (1,239,817)

2 ‘ RetiziERAR TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.



| ZFEELRER Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows /
HZE201212A31HIE5E
Year ended 31 December 2012

2012 2011
HiaF FET FET
Note Us$’ooo Us$°000
Rl ESEE FINANCING ACTIVITIES
BERARBIREZIE Dividends paid to owners of the Company (209,707) (238,609)
ENLEBRRZEE Dividends paid to non-controlling interests (38,099) (62,916)
EAT 2 IR 1D BT & Issue of shares under share option scheme 3,851 5,571
L EHBESFE Net proceeds from issuance of Notes 493,240 —
FIGIRITE R Proceeds from bank borrowings 5,875,374 1,337,643
EERITER Repayments of bank borrowings (6,390,222) (723,683)
METEA(A)E Net cash (used in) from
REFH financing activities (265,563) 318,006
HERRESEEYWF Net increase/(decrease) in cash and
i, Gh) cash equivalents 231,514 (331,187)
FYNZ2HERRELEMEY Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of year 600,052 893,340
EXFg o8 Effect on exchange rate changes 6,332 37,899
FRZ2RERBESLEEY Cash and cash equivalents
at end of year 27 837,898 600,052
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HZE2012F 12 A31BILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2012

—REHN

BREMBIZERERAR(NERRF DA
HeRsdMKIEREEARAR
BEERBEBMAXZMARRAZ
ITRET - HXELE MU /T H
R BT EESE 3 A 1557

ARAB/—REEBRBERARARKE
BB MR HEE - ARA R
HEHffEAR(MBRIAKE )R
RELEERBEETRE  KmkTy
BRm HNBARKEZIEX
BENMIFE4S -

RBLEE

AU BHRERDIIZBEL MRS
Mz BEEMBREE(TFBHM
BHm&EEL ) WHEBEBEME
BRENNEEHHEREEL &
e ERA(HEESTE kR
B BELTEERMZIETRAINE
ABRAAMEPIZWEBEREMMBE - &
MBEREAARTNEREHERS
FrERABIREZ EHARRZER
BAE °

BRESNHES  RERERNFHE]
SENE T 2 BB ISR E RSN -
RREMBHRREA Z ST RE R
Q0MEEMFREMBRERE — B
e AEBMEAZEEZSTHER
BMESHRMIES -

GENERAL INFORMATION

Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp. (the “Company”) is a
limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman Islands and
its shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited. The address of its principal place of
business is No. 15, The 3rd Street, Tianjin Economic-Technological
Development Area, Tianjin, PRC.

The Company is an investment holding company and engaged
in trading of spare parts of machineries and raw materials.
The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”)
are principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of instant
noodles, beverages and instant food products. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 43.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"),
which collective term includes all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS")
and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong, and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”).

These financial statements have been prepared on a basis
consistent with the accounting policies adopted in the 2011
financial statements except for the adoption of the new/revised
HKFRSs effective from the current year that are relevant to
the Group as detailed in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements. A summary of the principal accounting policies
adopted by the Group is set out in note 3 to the consolidated
financial statements.

QY ‘ RetizERAE TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.



RREE ()

ERBEMEHRER  REER - &
RAEERDEBRREEERB L
826,079,000 7T (2011 4 - JE i 2)
B (£991,942,000% L) + At ES
ERBETEAEEEARRRZE
BESRBMEFER -

E=ZERAKERBUBHAZRT
EEREEFEZFSBENNBR
T RAEAEEEANRBERAERN
BR7T 2 AR E B ALE - 8t
EHMRIAFBLE 2 ERIRE -

FESTHE
(a) HREE

B S mMER R LA REERE
EZE . REAALEEIEZ
HESHEE  HREERE
BEremEERITEemITA
TIAR R BEE - FEHR
T2 EEHBEE -

2.

/ BRBM5F Notes to the Financial Statements /
HE2012F12A3181LFE
For the year ended 31 December 2012

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

In preparing the financial statements, the directors have carefully
assessed the working capital and financing requirements of the
Group in the foreseeable future, as the Group's current liabilities
exceeded its current assets by US$826,079,000 (207 1. net current
liabilities of US$991,942,000) at the end of the reporting period.

Taking into account the existing banking facilities of the Group
and continuing profitable operations, the directors are satisfied
that the Group has sufficient resources to meet in full its financial
obligations as they fall due in the foreseeable future. Accordingly,
the financial statements have been prepared on a going concern
basis.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Basis of measurement

The measurement basis used in the preparation of these
financial statements is historical cost, except for available-
for-sale financial assets at fair value, financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss, and derivative financial
instruments, which have been measured at fair value as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.
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3. FESHBEE) 3.
(b) #HREEE

REMBBRERBEARARS
MEBEARIEBZSF12HA31H
LMK o METFRAANI
REMEZMEE HAR A
Al @EBURTEM— -

AEEAERE ZRAETR
BB ER 5K
X RBmE2EIKE - HEA
AIH) R A5 B AN 5 E BUS 12 il 4
ZBEHESH  LEES G
BRRERTHIEARLEN -

PHBERERBLZ2IINER
2HEHRERARRE A BB
MRZEZA » BARBRE
EhEEEIFEY - BRER
EOBEARBRRSHEEA
BB IEEREEFE
ZABBRES - AR RA
REER D BUBREEFTIE K
fB 77 P RERR BV LL DI RE R AR B
Bz EML B RER - 51
EREREZ R M (F LR

iz o
DI E m AR RE

AERRE R E2E W@ SR
BEHARRRERDEER
Ezmofh o  2EBEAEEN
ARAFIBR S KD B R E
o BENEEEHDHRR
ERBERER -

Q é ‘ RetiziERAR TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and all of its subsidiaries as at
31 December each year. The financial statements of the
subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting year as that
of the Company using consistent accounting policies.

All intra-group balance, transactions, income and
expenses and profits and losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceased.

Non-controlling interests are presented separately in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income and
within equity in the consolidated statement of financial
position, separately from equity attributable to owners of
the Company. The non-controlling interests in the acquiree,
that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders
to a proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets in event
of liquidation, is measured initially either at fair value or at
the present ownership interests’ proportionate share in the
recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
This choice of measurement basis is made on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis.

Allocation of total comprehensive income

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income
is attributed to the owners of the Company and the non-
controlling interest even if this results in the non-controlling
interest having a deficit balance.
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/ BRBM5F Notes to the Financial Statements /
HE2012F12A3181LFE
For the year ended 31 December 2012

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in ownership interests

Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect
the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiary.
Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
transactions with non-controlling interests reserve within in
equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between (i)
the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received
and the fair value of any retained interest determined at the
date when control is lost and (ii) the carrying amount of the
assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary
and any non-controlling interests at the date when
control is lost. The amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to the disposed subsidiary
is recognised on the same basis as would be required if the
owners of the Company had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. Any investment retained in the former
subsidiary and any amounts owed by or to the former
subsidiary is accounted for as a financial asset, associate,
jointly controlled entity or others as appropriate from the
date when control is lost.
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e ‘ AadERAT TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price
and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its
working condition and location for its intended use. Repairs
and maintenance are charged to the profit or loss during the
year in which they are incurred.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item) is included in profit or loss in
the year in which the item is derecognised.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less
accumulated impairment losses of property, plant and
equipment, other than construction in progress, over
their estimated useful lives as set out below from the date
on which they are available for use and after taking into
account their estimated residual values, using the straight-
line method. Where parts of an item of property, plant
and equipment have different useful lives, the costs or
valuation of the item is allocated on a reasonable basis and
depreciated separately.

Buildings 10 to 30 years
Machinery and equipment:

—Instant noodles 12 years
— Beverages

— Instant food and Others

10 to 12 years
5 to 10 years
Electrical appliances and equipment 5 years

Miscellaneous equipment 3to 10 years
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/ BRBM5F Notes to the Financial Statements /
HE2012F12A3181LFE
For the year ended 31 December 2012

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

(e)

)

Construction in progress

Construction in progress includes property, plant and
equipment in the course of construction for production
or for its own use purposes. Construction in progress is
stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Cost
includes all construction expenditure and other direct costs,
including interest costs, attributable to such projects. Costs
on completed construction works are transferred to the
appropriate asset category. No depreciation is provided in
respect of construction in progress until it is completed and
ready for its intended use.

Intangible assets

Concession right

Concession right acquired in a business combination
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Concession right has definite useful life and is carried at
cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method
over its estimated useful life. Both the period and method of
amortisation are reviewed annually.

Prepaid lease payments

Prepaid lease payments are up-front payments to acquire
fixed term interests in lessee-occupied land that are classified
as operating leases. The premiums are stated at cost and
are amortised over the period of the lease on a straight-line
basis to the profit or loss.
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q0 ‘ HedizirERAT TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity in which the Group has the power
to govern the financial and operating policies so as to obtain
benefits from its activities.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an interest
in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment loss. The
carrying amount of the interest in a subsidiary is reduced to
its recoverable amount on an individual basis. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis
of dividends received and receivable.

Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has significant
influence and which is neither a subsidiary nor a joint
venture.

The Group’s interest in associate is accounted for under
the equity method of accounting. The consolidated income
statement includes the Group’s share of the post-acquisition
results of the associate for the year. The consolidated
statement of financial position includes the Group’s share of
the net assets of the associate and also goodwill. The Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses when the
Group’s share of losses of the associate equals or exceeds
the carrying amount of its interest in the associate, which
includes any long term interests that, in substance, form
part of the Group's net interest in the associate.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associate are eliminated to
the extent of the Group's interest in the associate, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred, in which case they are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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/ BRBM5F Notes to the Financial Statements /
HE2012F12A3181LFE
For the year ended 31 December 2012

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

0]

@

Joint venture

A joint venture is a contractual arrangement whereby two
or more parties undertake an economic activity which is
subject to joint control and none of the participating parties
has unilateral control over the economic activity.

Jointly controlled entities

The Group's interest in jointly controlled entity is
accounted for under the equity method of accounting. The
consolidated income statement includes the Group's share
of the post-acquisition results of the jointly controlled entity
for the year. The consolidated statement of financial position
includes the Group’s share of the net assets of the jointly
controlled entity and also goodwill.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its joint venture are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s interest in the joint venture, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred, in which case they are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Bargain purchase

Bargain purchase arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary
is measured at the excess of the acquisition date amounts
of identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed of
the acquired subsidiary over the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in
the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously
held interest in the acquiree, if any, after reassessment, is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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22 ‘ HedizirERAT TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments

Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instruments and on a trade date basis.

A financial asset is derecognised when (i) the Group's
contractual rights to future cash flows from the financial
asset expire or (ii) the Group transfers the financial
asset and the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. A
financial liability is derecognised only when the liability is
extinguished, that is, when the obligation specified in the
relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Classification and measurement

Financial assets or financial liabilities are initially recognised
at their fair value plus, in the case of financial assets or
financial liabilities not carried at fair value through profit
or loss, transaction costs that are direct attributable to
the acquisition or issue of the financial assets or financial
liabilities.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading and financial assets
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss. They are carried at fair value, with any
resultant gain and loss recognised in the profit or loss.
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/ BRBM5F Notes to the Financial Statements /
HE2012F12A3181LFE
For the year ended 31 December 2012

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables including trade and other receivables
are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market and
are not held for trading. They are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, except where
receivables are interest-free loans and without any fixed
repayment term or the effect of discounting would be
insignificant. In such case, the receivables are stated at
cost less impairment loss. Amortised cost is calculated by
taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
over the period to maturity. Gains and losses arising from
derecognition, impairment or through the amortisation
process are recognised in the profit or loss.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
financial assets that are either designated at this category
or not classified in any of the other categories of financial
assets. They are measured at fair value with changes in value
recognised as other comprehensive income and separate
component of equity until the assets are sold, collected or
otherwise disposed of, or until the assets are determined
to be impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or loss
previously reported in other comprehensive income shall be
reclassified to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment.

Available-for-sale financial assets that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured are stated at cost less
impairment loss.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group assesses
whether there is objective evidence that financial assets,
other than those at fair value through profit or loss, are
impaired. The impairment loss of financial assets carried at
amortised cost is measured as the difference between the
assets’ carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flow discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. Such impairment loss is reversed in
subsequent periods through profit or loss when an increase
in the asset’s recoverable amount can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
subject to a restriction that the carrying amount of the asset
at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what
the amortised cost would have been had determined the
impairment not been recognised.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is impaired,
a cumulative loss comprising the difference between
its acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment and
amortisation) and current fair value, less any previously
recognised impairment loss in profit or loss, is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment.
Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss in respect
of available-for-sale equity instrument are not reversed
through profit or loss. Any subsequent increase in fair value
of available-for-sale equity instrument after recognition
of impairment loss is recognised in equity. Reversal of
impairment loss of available-for-sale debt instruments are
reversed through profit or loss, if the increase in fair value
of the instrument can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in profit
or loss.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For an available-for-sale financial asset that is carried at cost,
the amount of impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the financial asset and the
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at
the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset.
Such impairment loss shall not be reversed.

Financial liabilities

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, interest-bearing borrowings and other non-current
liabilities. All financial liabilities are recognised initially at
their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method, unless the effect
of discounting would be insignificant, in which case they are
stated at cost.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer of the contract to make specified payments
to reimburse the holder of the contract for a loss the
holder incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the terms of a
debt instrument. The financial guarantee contracts of the
Company represent the financial guarantees in respect of
credit facilities issued to its subsidiaries. The fair values of
the financial guarantees have not been recognised in the
statement of financial position of the Company, as the
estimation of the fair values of the financial guarantees
would not be meaningful and practicable due to related
party nature of the instruments.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments that do not qualify for
hedge accounting are deemed as financial assets or liabilities
held for trading and measured at fair value. The derivatives
are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at
their fair value. The gain or loss on change in fair values is
recognised in profit or loss unless the derivative qualifies for
hedge accounting.

Obligations arising from put options on shares of subsidiaries
written to non-controlling shareholders

Put option written to non-controlling shareholders, which
will be settled other than by exchange of fixed amount
of cash for a fixed number of shares in a subsidiary is
treated as derivative and is recognised at fair value upon
initial recognition. Any changes of fair value in subsequent
reporting dates are recognised in profit or loss.

The gross financial liability arising from the put option is
recognised when contractual obligation to repurchase the
shares in a subsidiary is established even if the obligation
is conditional on the counterparty exercising a right to sell
back the shares to the Group. The liability for the share
redemption amount is initially recognised and measured
at present value of the estimated repurchase price with
the corresponding debit to the non-controlling interests.
In subsequent periods, the remeasurement of the present
value of the estimated gross obligation under the written
put option to the non-controlling shareholders is recognised
in profit or loss.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

U]

(m)

(n)

Cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash equivalents represent short-term highly liquid
investments which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, net of bank overdraft, if any.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue and
costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably.

Sale of goods is recognised on transfer of risks and rewards
of ownership, which generally coincides with the time when
the goods are delivered and title has been passed.

Interest income from financial asset is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
Group's rights to receive payment have been established.

Foreign currency translation

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (“functional currency”). The Company'’s functional
currency is United States Dollars (“US$"”) and majority of
its subsidiaries have Renminbi (“RMB"”) as their functional
currency. The consolidated financial statements are
presented in US$, which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the profit or loss.

The results and financial position of all the Group entities
that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the presentation
currency as follows:

(@) assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at
the end of the reporting period;

(b) income and expenses for each income statement
presented are translated at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year;

(c) all resulting exchange differences arising from the
above translation and exchange differences arising
from a monetary item that forms part of the Group's
net investment in a foreign operation are recognised
as a separate component of equity.

On disposal or partial disposal of the Group’s interest
in a subsidiary that includes operation which does not
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary,
the proportionate share of the cumulative amount of the
exchange differences recognised in the separate component
of equity is re-attributed to the non-controlling interests in
that foreign operation and are not recognised in profit or
loss.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(o)

(p)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost, which comprises all costs of purchase and,
where applicable, costs of conversion and other costs
that have been incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition, is calculated using
the weighted average cost method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business less the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
internal and external sources of information to assess
whether there is any indication that its property, plant and
equipment, intangible asset, interest in associates, interest
in jointly controlled entities and prepaid lease payments may
be impaired or impairment loss previously recognised no
longer exists or may be reduced. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated, based on
the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the smallest group of assets that generates cash
flows independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating
unit is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is
reduced to its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are
recognised as an expense immediately.

A reversal of impairment losses is limited to the carrying
amount of the asset or cash-generating unit that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
in prior years. Reversal of impairment losses is recognised as
income in profit or loss immediately.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred, net of any investment income on
the temporary investment of the specific borrowings, that
are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, i.e. assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale. All other borrowing costs are recognised as an
expense in the period in which they are incurred.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(r)

(s)

Operating leases

Leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee are classified as
operating leases. Rentals payable under operating leases
are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
lease term of the relevant lease. Lease incentives received
are recognised in the profit or loss as an integral part of
the net consideration agreed for the use of the leased
asset. Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants represent incentive grants from the
relevant PRC authorities in respect of the running of
business by the Group in certain development zones and to
encourage the furtherance of such business.

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income
over the years necessary to match the grant on a systematic
basis to the costs that it is intended to compensate. Where
the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a
deferred income account and is released to the profit or loss
over the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal
annual instalments.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Employee benefits

Short term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present values.

Defined contribution plans

The obligations for contributions to defined contribution
retirement scheme are recognised as expenses in profit or
loss as incurred and are reduced by contributions forfeited
by those employees who leave the scheme prior the
contributions are vested fully in those employees. The assets
of the scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund.

Defined benefit plans

The defined benefit plans are generally funded by payments
from employees and the Group, taking into account of the
recommendations of the independent qualified actuaries
using the projected unit credit method. The Group's
obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated
separately for each plan by estimating the amount of future
benefit that employees have earned in return for their
services in the current and prior periods, which is discounted
to the present value and reduced by the fair value of any
plan assets.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

®

Employee benefits (Continued)

The amount recognised in the statement of financial
position represents the present value of the defined benefit
obligation as adjusted for unrecognised actuarial gains and
losses and unrecognised past service cost, and reduced by
the fair value of plan assets, if any. Any asset resulting from
this calculation is limited to the net total of any cumulative
unrecognised net actuarial losses and past service costs, plus
the present value of any future refunds from the plan or
reductions in future contributions to the plan. If there is no
change or a decrease in the present value of the economic
benefits, the entire net actuarial gains or losses with the past
service cost of the current period is recognised immediately.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions, which
exceed 10% of the greater of the present value of the
Group’s defined benefit obligations and the fair value
of plan assets are amortised over the expected average
remaining working lives of the participating employees. Past
service cost is recognised immediately to the extent that the
benefits are already vested and otherwise is amortised on a
straight-line basis over the average period until the benefits
become vested.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled transactions

The Group’s employees, including directors, receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payment
transactions, whereby the employees rendered services in
exchange for shares or rights over shares. The cost of such
transactions with employees is measured by reference to the
fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date. The fair
value of share options granted to employees is recognised
as an employee cost with a corresponding increase in a
share-based payment reserve within equity. The fair value is
determined using the binomial model taking into account
the terms and conditions of the transactions, other than
conditions linked to the price of shares of the Company.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the
year(s) in which the vesting conditions are to be fulfilled,
ending on the date on which the relevant employees
become fully entitled to the award (“vesting date”). During
the vesting period, the number of share options that is
expected to vest ultimately is reviewed. Any adjustment to
the cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is charged/
credited to profit or loss for the year of the review, with a
corresponding adjustment to the reserve within equity.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u)

Share-based payment transactions (Continued)

Equity-settled transactions (Continued)

When the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share-based payment reserve
will be transferred to share premium account. When the
share options are forfeited after the vesting date or are
still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share-based payment reserve will be
transferred to retained profits.

Share-based payment transactions in which the Company
grants share options to subsidiaries’ employees are
accounted for as an increase in value of interest in
subsidiaries in the Company's statement of financial position
which is eliminated on consolidation, with a corresponding
credit to the share-based payment reserve within equity.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation

The charge for current income tax is based on the results
for the year as adjusted for items that are non-assessable
or disallowed. It is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, any deferred tax arises from initial recognition
of goodwill; or other asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss is not recognised.

The deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is recovered or the liability is settled, based on tax
rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, tax losses and
credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising
on interest in subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled
entities, except where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences is controlled by the Group and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.
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3.

/ BE BB5E Notes to the Financial Statements /

BZE2012F12A31HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2012

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(w) Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the

Group:

(@ A person or a close member of that person’s family is

related to the Group if that person:

(i)  Has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) Has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) Is a member of the key management personnel

of the Group.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions applies:

() The entity and the Group are members of the

same group (which means that each parent,

subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the

others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the

other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a

member of a group of which the other entity is

a member).

(iii)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same third

party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.
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/ BR B MizF Notes to the Financial Statements /
HE2012F12A3181LFE
For the year ended 31 December 2012

3. IEEFBER#E) 3.  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(w) BEBEBAL(E) (w) Related parties (Continued)
(b) (HFFE NI G - B (b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the

EREANERS B following conditions applies: (Continued)

(&)

(v) BEERAARSEEKHE (v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
AREBE@EB 2B the benefit of employees of either the Group or
ot E 8 MR an entity related to the Group. If the Group is
ZEEBEA G E o itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are
AN E AR FE 2 also related to the Group.

Zat &l REER
ZEETEREER
R o

(vi) EREX(a)PTHEBIA (vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
=+ 28 ) 5 =2 2[R 5 person identified in (a).

i o

(vii)y P (a)i) Frak BRI A £ (vi) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
HEBREEAZZE influence over the entity or is a member of the
Nk EZE (8% key management personnel of the entity (or of a
BEENTAREE parent of the entity).

EEEKE °
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3.

/ BRBM5F Notes to the Financial Statements /
HE2012F12A3181LFE
For the year ended 31 December 2012

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(w) Related parties (Continued)

(x)

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the Group
and include:

(@)  that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(b)  children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;
and

(c)  dependants of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The Company’s executive directors, who
are responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, have been
identified as the chief operating decision-makers that make
strategic decisions.
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/ BR B MizF Notes to the Financial Statements /
HE2012F12A3181LFE
For the year ended 31 December 2012

3. FEESHHBEAE) 3.  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(y) BEREREERZRKEE (y) Future changes in HKFRS
RAGREMBmEEER - K At the date of authorisation of these consolidated financial
EETKREEFATIESS statements, the HKICPA has issued the following new/
TR A & B MR AEE H Ak revised standards and amendments to HKFRS that are not
e I S LR yet effective for the current year, which the Group has not
LR BRI o early adopted.
BRGED HEHRELNE Amendments to Presentation of ltems of
EN #H—E M HKAS 1 Other Comprehensive Income !
1BETZR FE W
HEZ
=270
BB GITER ESFFHE HKAS 19 (2011) Employee Benefits
ZE195%
(2011 4)
BREGFER BUAHK HKAS 27 (2011) Separate Financial Statements 2/
F27 5% &
(2011 4)
FEESHEL REENA HKAS 28 (2011) Investments in Associates and
F 2858 REMERE Joint Ventures 2/
(2011 4) ZREL
BEEUB®RE HFETK HKFRS 10 Consolidated financial statements !
£RIZE105% X
ERBIFRIRE  BA TR HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements =/
AERIZE 11 5%
EEUBHE WERAME HKFRS 12 Disclosures of Interests with
HRIE125% BzEEmY Other Entities 2/
ERUB®RE HETFE Amendments to Additional transition
HRZE105% HE o HE HKFRS 10, relief - Consolidated
- BB THER R HKFRS 11, financial statements, Joint
s YER REMEE HKFRS 12 Arrangements, Disclosures of
F115ER L Interests with Other Entities 2!

BRUB|ME HERIES
HRE 125

ZAERT AR

BEUE®RE QAFEZ HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement 2/
ERIF 1358 AEZ

BRI RE BAERAEE Amendments to First-time Adoption of
ZERIZE 1 5% BT E # HKFRS 1 Hong Kong Financial
ZAETEAR ERIZ Reporting Standards I
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/ BRBM5F Notes to the Financial Statements /
HE2012F12A3181LFE
For the year ended 31 December 2012

3. FESHBEE) 3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(yy ERMBEREENZRAKRESH (y) Future changes in HKFRS (Continued)
(&

BRBRNY BEXESLE

HK (IFRIC) - Int 20

Stripping Costs in the

MERIEETE  [EELT Production Phase of
& 22 FERE KL a Surface Mine
F205%
BIEB AU 2009 4F-2011 Various HKFRSs Annual Improvements
AR 1F ] B 4F JEF Project - 2009-2011 Cycle
=T AP

BEMGRE RE-A#HT

Amendments to

Disclosures - Offsetting Financial

ERIF TR HEER HKFRS 7 Assets and Financial Liabilities !
1EE A LHEE

BEMBRE Z5/-A#HT

Amendments to

Presentation - Offsetting Financial

BRIE32E HEER HKAS 32 Assets and Financial Liabilities ©/
ZAETEAR LA A EP

S8 estER BUHER Amendments to Investment Entities - Amendments
FE275R E B =) HKAS 27 (2011), to Separate Financial Statements,
(2011 4F) » TEHRE Jo 1% HKFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements,
EBUBHRE BRAME HKFRS 12 Disclosures of Interests with
ERIZE 105 RBzBms Other Entities 5!
REBHBR EBEY
EAERIE 12
SR ZABETAR

ERUERE HT AW HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

ZERII%E 9 57
BN REEE BN FH S

Amendments to

Mandatory Effective Date of

BIEoSE T EHIZ 94 HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments,
BIIERERE ZEHEX HKFRS 7 and Transition Disclosure ™
AFE75HZ HR - 2/
EHEN TREE
S
i MN2012E7 81 Bk 2125 i Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012
a2 FIEHIFEN
2 R20134F1 1Bk 2146 2l Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013
a2 FIEHIFEN
B3l R2014F1 A1 Bk 2146 Bl Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014
a2 FIEHIFEN
14 201541 A1 Bk 2146 14 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015
a2 FIEHIFEN
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/ BR B MizF Notes to the Financial Statements /
HE2012F12A3181LFE
For the year ended 31 December 2012

3. FESHBEE) 3.
vy ERAMBREENZRREH (y)
(&)

MN2014%F1 818 520154 1
A1RA 2 ERABFEHMA
R FTHE HE RAEFT 2 &R - K
EEEZR FHBRENZS
i RIEFT R 2 BER
ZAEITATME UL - BT R
ILETHAREESRE MR E
M BIEL S BT -

$1R2012%7 818 K2013F
1A1As & ARz FEHRE
AR I A RT 2 ZER - B
TERBEEERE195R(2011
F) BRIV NBHRIBELH
BB RS ER AR E 2
BB EARE - BB
#ERE 195 (2011 F)BIATZ
BHEEBMN g5t HERBE
Hea B ERAF1998
Q0N F)BUB TIE &R E ] -
[EEEE ERERAE 2
EFEMB LR E TR
BRI BR IS F B B AR B
FEKEE - RIBIEFTEAE
% FiAREWRE R EEE A
KERAHMEZENE - BEE
FT2ERZE 1957(2011 F) Ay fE A
B EAEEHREETHNRE
BRETE 2 5T < 83118/
BB G ERE 1955 (2011 F)
M2013F1A1H AR I
BN o
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Future changes in HKFRS (Continued)

For the new/revised standards and amendments effective for
the annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014 and
1 January 2015, the directors are in the process of assessing
the possible impact of the future adoption of these new/
revised HKFRSs, but are not yet in a position to reasonably
estimate their impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

For the new/revised standards and amendments effective
for the annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012
and 1 January 2013, the directors do not anticipate that the
adoption of these new HKFRSs will have any material impact
on the results of the Group, except for HKAS19 (2011).
HKAS 19 (2011) introduces a number of amendments to the
accounting for employee benefits. Among them, HKAS 19
(2011) eliminates the “corridor method” under which the
recognition of actuarial gains and losses relating to defined
benefit schemes could be deferred and recognised in profit
or loss over the expected average remaining service lives of
employees. Under the revised standard, all actuarial gains
and losses are required to be recognised immediately in
other comprehensive income. The application of HKAS19
(2011) will change the Group’s accounting for defined
benefit plans under which the corridor method is currently
applied. The revised HKAS19 (2011) is effective as from 1
January 2013, and retrospective adoption is required.
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3.

/ BRBM5F Notes to the Financial Statements /
HE2012F12A3181LFE
For the year ended 31 December 2012

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(y)

Future changes in HKFRS (Continued)

The expected retrospective effect of this change in
accounting policy on the employee benefit obligations
under the non-current liabilities of the Group will be
increased by US$19,666,000 and US$8,060,000 as at 1
January 2012 and 31 December 2012 respectively. The
expected retrospective effect of this change in accounting
policy on the equity will be decreased by US$19,666,000
and US$8,060,000 as at 1 January 2012 and 31 December
2012 respectively. The expected retrospective effect of this
change in accounting policy on the administrative expenses
and profit for the year will be decreased by and increased by
US$2,617,000 respectively for the year ended 31 December
2012.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, the
expected retrospective effect of this change in accounting
policy on the employee benefit obligations under the non-
current liabilities of the Company will be increased by
US$9,876,000 and US$3,390,000 as at 1 January 2012 and
31 December 2012 respectively. The expected retrospective
effect of this change in accounting policy on the equity will
be decreased by US$9,876,000 and US$3,390,000 as at 1
January 2012 and 31 December 2012 respectively.
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/ BRE B PFsE Notes to the Financial Statements /

BZE20125F12A31HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2012

BRI RIER] 2 BB M B
HER

BERFEMRERMZRB LYK
HEERER  RAKERARA]
EAEFEREREN - AR EAR
SENPBRERA B 2IETE LR

BT

BB G LR BEAHE -
F12RZAERTA L6 & ZE
EEVHHREER RKE-HE

EVEPACTIRN EZBE

RMA BB RE LR ZEF]
HAKSERARREAIRBEFE

XEMVBANLREBERE -

BRE AT R A E

BRARRZ A5 REBRARAE TS
HEERBERRSEEMBERREF
He ELfat RREHEG Y
AEBEZEHRRER  EE - &
B WARRX 2 BRESBEARLFT
EFHZRBEBERTE  XEFER
BEBREEABEZ(BRARLRE

ERBATHEBEEZEM)

o NEEE BiHEHZETS
R STHRRD R B oK SR EB R (45 3T 7

FEBRMEER -

ADOPTION OF NEW/REVISED HKFRS

The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments to HKFRS that
are first effective for the current accounting period of the Group
and the Company. Of these, the changes in accounting policy
relevant to the Group's financial statements are as follows:

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax: Recovery of
Underlying Assets

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures - Transters of
Financial Assets

The adoption of these amendments to HKFRS has no significant
effect on the results and financial positions of the Group and the
Company for the current and prior years.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and assumptions concerning the future and judgements
are made by the management in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements. They affect the application
of the Group's accounting policies, reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses, and disclosures made. They are
assessed on an on-going basis and are based on experience and
relevant factors, including expectations of future events that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Where
appropriate, revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period of revision and future periods, in case the revision also
affects future periods.
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/ BRBM5F Notes to the Financial Statements /
HE2012F12A3181LFE
For the year ended 31 December 2012

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(Continued)

Useful lives and impairment of property, plant and
equipment and prepaid lease payments

The directors review the residual value, useful lives and
depreciation/amortisation method of property, plant and
equipment and prepaid lease payments at the end of each
reporting period, through careful consideration with regards
to expected usage, wear-and-tear and potential technical
obsolescence to usage of the assets.

In determining whether an asset is impaired or the event
previously causing the impairment no longer exists, the directors
have to exercise judgement in the area of asset impairment,
particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event has occurred that
may affect the asset value or such event affecting the asset value
has not been in existence; (2) whether the carrying value of an
asset can be supported by the net present value of future cash
flows which are estimated based upon the continued use of the
asset or derecognition; and (3) the appropriate key assumptions
to be applied in preparing cash flow projections including whether
these cash flow projections are discounted using an appropriate
rate. Changing the assumptions selected by management to
determine the level of impairment, including the discount rates or
the growth rate assumptions in the cash flow projections, could
materially affect the net present value used in the impairment test.

Deferred tax assets

As at the end of the reporting period, no deferred tax asset
in relation to unused tax losses has been recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position. The recognition of
the deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether sufficient profits
or taxable temporary differences will be available in the future. In
cases where the actual future profits generated are different from
the original estimate, a material recognition of deferred tax assets
may arise, after taking into account the utilization of previously
unrecognised tax losses, which would be recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which such estimate is changed.
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/ BR B MizF Notes to the Financial Statements /
HE2012F12A3181LFE
For the year ended 31 December 2012

BRE G RAE ()

EBERE BN TEREEREE
HWEEz AR BETE
RIE2011 5 11 B 4 B 5T 37 8 8RS B
BZH T R2012F38318
7K £ [E U B8 China Bottlers (Hong
Kong) Limited([CBLJ) & &#B # 2 -
BRAFBHII NG E M B HRERM T
38 IRBAKEMSEBUR - EiE
REME CBLM A ZREEFEIEA
nEERKEB R -

CBLRA U IE A MR B - FTRERY
AHEREERAENRABZANE
ERBIAEREXRMGEMESE -
EEBEEAAEBER  GEMMNAE—
EMEGE ERPRETRERR
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Wiz e
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(Continued)

Fair value estimation of the consideration transferred,
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed

On 31 March 2012, the Group acquired the entire interest of
China Bottlers (Hong Kong) Limited (“CBL") in accordance with
the Strategic Alliance Arrangements entered on 4 November
2011, details are set out in note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements. In accordance with the accounting policy of the
Group, the consideration transferred and net identifiable assets
acquired in the CBL are recorded at fair value at the date of
acquisition.

The fair value of consideration transferred, identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed of CBL at the acquisition date are
determined by an independent qualified professional valuer. In
determining the fair value, the valuer has utilised certain methods
of valuation which involves certain assumptions and estimates.
Judgement is required to determine the principal valuation
assumptions in arriving the fair values.

TURNOVER

The Group's turnover represents revenue arising from the sale of
goods at invoiced value to customers, net of returns, discounts
and Value Added Tax.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The executive directors have been identified as the chief operating
decision-maker of the Group. The Group has identified its operating
segments and prepared segment information based on the regular
internal financial information reported to the Company’s executive
directors for their decisions about resources allocation to the
Group’s business components and review of these components’
performance. The Company’s executive directors consider the
business principally from a product perspective as over 99% of
the Group's sales and business are conducted in the PRC. Business
reportable operating segments identified are instant noodles,
beverages, instant food and others. The segment of others includes
investment holding, logistics and supportive functions.

For the purposes of assessing the performance of the operating
segments and allocating resources between segments, the
executive directors assess segment result after finance costs for
the year which is consistent with that in the financial statements.
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/ BRB K5t Notes to the Financial Statements /

HZE2012F 12 A31BLLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2012

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment assets include all assets with the exception of available-
for-sale financial assets, financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, interest in associates and jointly controlled entities.
Segment liabilities include all liabilities with the exception of
employee benefit obligations.

The investment costs and intra-group balances were previously
included in segment assets and liabilities and were eliminated
in full. Due to the better presentation and more accurate
segment information to be reported to the executive directors,
the investment costs and intra-group balances are not included
in segment assets and liabilities of “Others”. The comparative
figures of segment assets of Others and inter-segment elimination
have been restated to US$175,570,000 and US$608,544,000
respectively; and the comparative figures of segment liabilities
of Others and inter-segment elimination have been restated to
US$626,444,000 and US$759,956,000 respectively.

Inter-segment sales are priced at cost plus profit margin. The
accounting policies of the reporting segments are the same as the
Group's accounting policies as described in note 3.

The geographical location of the Group’s customers is based on
the location at which the goods are delivered. Over 99% of the
revenues from external customers of the Group are attributable
to customers located in the PRC, the place of domicile of the
Group's operating entities. Meanwhile, over 99% of the Group's
non-current assets other than available-for-sale financial assets are
located in the PRC.

No revenue from a single external customer amounted to 10% or
more of the Group’s revenue.
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/ BREMI5F Notes to the Financial Statements /

HZE2012F 12 A31BIEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2012

7. ABENE) 7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
R2012F R 2011F12A31BZH The segment information for the years ended 31 December 2012
EBERAT and 2011 are as follows:
ST g Business segment analysis
2012
P
LEE HERR Inter-
Instant 8% Instant Hft  segment &t
noodles Beverages food Others elimination Total

FXr  TEr  TEm FEx fEx FEA%
USS000  US$'000  USS'000  USS'000  USS000  US$'000

EEE Turnover

INRE B Iz Revenue from external customers 3,959,782 4,930,961 234,044 87,065 — 9,211,852
ABE 2 WE Inter-segment revenue 874 1,410 84 96,168  (98,536) —
e EHE Segment revenue 3,960,656 4,932,371 234,128 183233  (98,536) 9,211,852

PBEE(CHRABFER) Segment result after finance costs 464,268 166,534 7,032 1,902 (5.669) 634,067

[EREE DA R Share of results of associates and

SEWNGIES jointly controlled entities — 3,966 — — — 3,966
WA B e (B kR Gain on hargain purchases, net

WEERREER) of expenses related to acquisition — 189,859 — — — 189,859
BRBE AR A Profit before taxation 464,268 360,359 7,032 1,902 (5.669) 827,892
A Taxation (140,866)  (75,713)  (3.481)  (7,703) —  (227,763)
AEE 2 BN (BX) Profit (loss) for the year 323,402 284,646 3,551 (5801) (5669 600,129
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/ BRB K5t Notes to the Financial Statements /

HZE2012F 12831 BILEFE

For the year ended 31 December 2012

DEER(E) 7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
ERSBAW(E) Business segment analysis (Continued)
2012
AR
hEE HERR Inter-
Instant iR Instant Hfti  segment Bt
noodles Beverages food Others elimination Total
FET FET FET FET FET FET
US$'000  US$000  USS000  USS000  USS'000  USS000

BE Assets
PEBE Segment assets 2,916,279 4,328,382 188,739 573,601  (673,848) 7,333,153
BERFER Interest in associates — 21,324 — — — 21,324
BEARER Interest in jointly controlled entities — 49404 13,710 — — 63,114
RABREE Unallocated assets 55,672
BEBE Total assets 7,473,263
8% Liabilities
PEEE Segment liabilities 968,816 3,032,460 82,951 927,777 (1,054,046) 3,957,958
RAEBE Unallocated liabilities 18,060
AfaRE Total liabilities 3,976,018
Hitt R Other information
WEREH Depreciation and amortisation 78,889 294,925 6,152 7,791 — 387,757
BARY Capital expenditures 337,123 519,012 20,026 5,361 — 881,522
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/ BRB K3 Notes to the Financial Statements /

HZE2012F 12 A31BLLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2012

1. HWENE)

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

EBDIWoM(E) Business segment analysis (Continued)
2011
T paE

e Inter-

Instant #m  AFRm 2t segment il

noodles  Beverages Instant food Others  elimination Total

FET FET FET FET FET FET

Us$000  US$000  US$000  US$000  USS000  US$000
EEL] Turnover
IRE P Y Revenue from external customers 3,592,270 3,998,702 201,432 74,176 — 7,866,580
DEE 2 Was Inter-segment revenue 119 1,804 67 82,766  (84,756) —
AHEERE Segment revenue 3,592,389 4,000,506 201,499 156,942  (84,756) 7,866,580
AHEE Segment result after finance costs and
(BNBRRBER)RBRBAIER  Profit before taxation 418,044 208,460 5,862 35,459 (4,849) 662,976
A Taxation (112,200 (49,252) 330 (2,130) — (163272
KEE 2 Profit for the year 305,824 159,208 6,192 33,329 (4,849) 499,704
BE Assets
N EE Segment assets 2,520,574 3442346 173846 175570  (608,544) 5,703,792
ANEBE Unallocated assets 104,982
EEAE Total assets 5,808,774
& Liabilities
AHEE Segment liabilities 888,017 2,279,707 74232 626444  (759,956) 3,108,444
AREAE Unallocated liabilities 14,064
BEEE Total liabilities 3,122,508
Hig s Other information
WEREE Depreciation and amortisation 53915 254,387 4,519 8,420 — 3241
BRRY Capital expenditures 291,835 1,119,616 17,388 6,120 — 1,434,959
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HZE20129F12A31BLLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2012

8. OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET INCOME

2012 2011
FXm FET
us$’00o Us$°000
Ht gz Other revenue
FBUWA Interest income 48,405 38,564
A F WA Dividend income 1,595 1,573
50,000 40,137
Hi g A Other net income
b H a5 58 Exchange gains, net 6,269 15,811
o B 2 W Gain on sales of scrapped materials 26,722 23,282
B B Government grants 35,978 28,521
HE—KI2ERF Gain on disposal of a non-wholly owned
ZHBATR—K subsidiary and an associate previously
Bk N Al (CART#E 2 48 classified as assets held for sale
RIFELEEE) 2 ke — 39,175
I E = (B Nk Gain on bargain purchase, net of
WEEEERBEER) expenses related to acquisition (note 38)
(K17#38) 189,859 —
HAtb Others 35,939 22,979
294,767 129,768
344,767 169,905
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/ BRB K3 Notes to the Financial Statements /

HZE2012F 12 A31BLLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2012

9. MRBIANER 9.  PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
2012 2011
FXm FET
A0BR (FFA) RHITEB % ¢ This is stated after charging (crediting): US$'000 Us$°000
B E A Finance costs
BN 5 FNBREEE ZR1T  Interest on bank and other borrowings
REME R FEZH wholly repayable within five years 36,904 12,871
W FIEHEAR(FIA Less: Borrowing costs capitalised into
LEN T Y e property, plant and equipment
(hEFHE R = at weighted average capitalisation
£2.43%(2011:1.32%) rate of 2.43% (2011: 1.32%) (4,231) (3,499)
32,673 9,372
Hrg B Other items
BIA(BIEEEME) :  Staff costs (including directors’ remuneration):
& I Salaries and wages 782,738 562,550
NEREERN N Equity-settled share-based
Z 58 payment expenses 13,723 11,346
RIRES A Pension costs:
REMKET S Defined contribution plans 99,433 64,072
REBFETE Defined benefit plans 5,572 3,328
ZHAE A Auditor’s Fees:
% BREH N & Auditor’s remuneration 1,455 1,343
IEEIZ RIS Non-audit services 422 121
BEEFERA Cost of inventories 6,457,364 5,778,611
e Depreciation 380,845 317,544
o 078 4955 (B 2 B 5 Amortisation of prepaid lease payments 6,346 3,697
A E Amortisation of intangible assets
(BEBRFBERDHAA) (included in distribution costs) 566 —
ME - R REHEZ Impairment loss of property,
FEEE plant and equipment (included
(BREREMKEEEH)  inother operating expenses) 13,900 4,169
EEYEERD Minimum lease payments in respect
XEEE K of operating lease charges for premises 60,678 58,967
HEME - W NEEZ  Loss (gain) on disposal of property,
fEE (as) plant and equipment 3,791 (74)
HEHEESH Loss on disposal of available-for-sale
BEZEBE financial assets 4,656 —
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ARREZCDHRBR ZMEBE

/ BRB MI5E Notes to the Financial Statements /

HZE2012F 12831 BILEFE

For the year ended 31 December 2012

10. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
EMOLUMENTS

The aggregate amounts of emoluments received or receivable by

[N the Company's directors are as follows:
2012
Y BIMRE
Rtie DRBZA  arEfs
EZHE  Salaries i FE  Retirement
Directors'  and other Discretionary /it Share-based scheme &;
fees emoluments bonuses  Sub-total  payments contribution Total
£ & FET i FET FET i
Uss'000 Uss000 Uss'000 Uss'000 Uss000 Uss 000 Uss000
HTES Executive directors:
HEN Wei Ing-Chou 200 1,032 180 1412 1,724 1 3,137
it Takeshi Ida 80 16 - % - - %
R Wu Chung-Yi 50 8 - 58 - - 58
HER Wei Ying-Chiao 50 16 - 66 - - 66
TER Ryo Yoshizawa 50 R - 82 - - 82
it Junichiro Ida 50 16 - 66 - - 66
BUFHTES: Independent non-executive directors:
G Hsu Shin-Chun 50 16 - 66 - - 66
3R Lee Tiong-Hock 50 16 - 66 - - 66
BEAN Daisuke Okada - - - - - - -
b Hiromu Fukada 50 16 - 66 - - 66
630 1,168 180 1978 1,724 1 3,703
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/ BRB K3 Notes to the Financial Statements /

HZE2012F 12 A31BLLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2012

10. EENEREEMES(Z) 10. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
20121 A38 M B AN & On 3 January 2012, Mr Daisuke Okada resigned as an independent
HEBEERANGNBYIERNITES — non-executive director of the Company and Mr Hiromu Fukada
B RB - FHEEEWHEEAR was appointed as an independent non-executive director of the
NAIRBEIEMITES © Company.
2011
Hek RIRE
HMe WRARR s
EETR Salaries Jef LFB  Retirement
Directors”  and other ~ Discretionary INGF Share-based scheme &t
fees  emoluments bonuses  Sub-total  payments  contribution Total

T A fEr T A fEr 5
Ussoo0  Uss000  US$000  USSO00  USS000  USSO00  USS000

HTEES Executive directors:
BN Wei Ing-Chou 200 990 47 1617 2,607 1 4225
HER Takeshi lda 80 16 — % — — %
REE Wu Chung-Yi 50 4 — 54 - - 54
RER Wei Ying-Chiao 50 16 - 66 - - 66
BER Ryo Yoshizawa 50 2 — 8 — — 8
ity Junichiro Ida 50 16 - 66 - - 66
BUEMIES Independent non-executive directors:
Gl Hsu Shin-Chun 50 16 = 66 — — 66
£33 Lee Tiong-Hock 50 12 - 62 - - 62
ABEE Michihiko Ota 2 8 - 30 - - 30
ABAR Daisuke Okada 28 4 = E) — — R
630 1,114 427 217 2,607 1 4779
R2012F %2011 %12 A31 B IHE No directors have waived emoluments in respect of the years
ElWEEEHREEDRHS - ended 31 December 2012 and 2011.
RNEBREASFESEMALREER No emoluments have been paid by the Group to the directors
MM EsEESINARNEFE N as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
NG sk AEE R LB EHEEE - compensation for loss of office.
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EEREREEM(E)

KREBESNTEHFALTBREIMN
(20114 : 1fz7)ES HBNE&FB
B S HeRANI (20114 - 4(7)

/ BRB K5t Notes to the Financial Statements /

HZE20129F12A31BLLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2012

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'’S
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in
the Group for the year include one director (2071: one) whose
emoluments is reflected in the analysis presented above. Details of

AL ZBEFBIT : the emoluments of the remaining four individuals (2071: four) are
as follows:

2012 2011
FET FET
Uss’000 Us$'000
e REAmME Salaries and other emoluments 1,806 1,636
LARRAD 250 2 5RI8 Share-based payments 1,835 3,514
T4 Discretionary bonuses 366 525
RIRIREERT B30 Retirement scheme contribution 8 4
4,015 5,679
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/ BRB K3 Notes to the Financial Statements /

HZE2012F 12 A31BLLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2012

10. EEREREEME(ZE) 10. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
YAt mEEHE AT 284 4B B0 The emoluments were paid to the four highest paid individuals as
T follows:
EBEAE
Number of individuals

< 48 B Emoluments band 2012 2011
833,334kt % US$833,334 to US$961,538

961,538 T (HK$6,500,001 to HK$7,500,000)

(6,500,001 7T

%7,500,000%87T) 2 1
961,539% L2 US$961,539 to US$ 1,089,744

1,089,744 37T (HK$7,500,001 to HK$8,500,000)

(7,500,001 7T

% 8,500,000/8 7T ) 1 —
1,089,745 %L E US$1,089,745 to US$1,217,949

1,217,949 3% 7T (HK$8,500,001 to HK$9,500,000)

(8,500,001 /57T
% 9,500,000 7T) - -

1,217,950 X TE US$1,217,950 to US$1,345,154

1,345,154 % 7T (HK$9,500,001 to HK$10,500,000)

(9,500,001 87T

2% 10,500,000%7C) 1 1
1,345,155 £ T & US$1,345,155 to US$1,474,359

1,474,359 % 7T (HK$10,500,001 to HK$11,500,000)

(10,500,001 87T

2% 11,500,000 7T) — _
1,474,360 X LE US$1,474,360 to US$ 1,602,564

1,602,564 3T (HK$11,500,001 to HK$12,500,000)

(11,500,001 87T

% 12,500,000 7T) _ _
1,602,565 ETLE US$1,602,565 to US$1,730,769

1,730,769 % 7T (HK$12,500,001 to HK$13,500,000)

(12,500,001 77T

% 13,500,000 7T) — _

1,730,770 £ & US$1,730,770 to US$ 1,858,974
1,858,974 3% T (HK$13,500,001 to HK$14,500,000)
(13,500,001 87T
% 14,500,000 7T) — 2
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/ BRB K5t Notes to the Financial Statements /

HZE2012F 12 A31BLLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2012

1. B\ 11. TAXATION
2012 2011
FET FET
Us$000 Us$’000
AEEHIE— Current tax — PRC Enterprise income tax
Bl EATEH
REEF Current year 185,520 143,516
LRI FE e (ZEHEE  Under/(Over) provision in prior year 8,082 (5,446)
193,602 138,070
EEBE Deferred taxation
EEAE N EEE 2 Origination and reversal of
Ty = 2558 temporary differences, net 13,683 1,438
BRAREERHEZ Effect of withholding tax on the
M A R A o AR distributable profits of the
FH 2z TR (A2 33) Group's PRC subsidiaries (note 33) 20,478 23,764
34,161 25,202
RNEEHIERTE Total tax charge for the year 227,763 163,272
BEHEWITHANTRAERF The Cayman Islands levies no tax on the income of the Company
WA B AEAIFLIR © and the Group.
HR2012FE R2011TEARNRER 2 A Hong Kong Profits Tax has not been provided as the Group
FHREENEEERYEEANS entities either incurred losses for taxation purpose or had no
EFNEMESREFE  BHIL KA assessable profits subject to Hong Kong Profit Tax for the years
EBMNGHET 28 - ended 2012 and 2011.
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/ BRB K3 Notes to the Financial Statements /

HZE2012F 12 A31BLLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2012

11.

BIE(E)

BEEBREAREREEMSHA
BB B BUR /9 @ A(E X (2007139
%) B2008F1H1HEE  RE=X
BEHEBEBREMNLE  EFRHE
IEITR S FRERTIBEZVEEREK »
Hep: X EMSH15% HEH
1 % - 2008 F 2 18% i & # 17 -
2009 £F #20% #t 2 #, 17 * 2010 4F
22% R H 17 2011 F $£24%
TEHIT © 2012 F R ABIE 25% i
KT ©

NERERHESHESTESE - M
RETERREGOFREMEBEAFH
AZHFEARTPBIINGREDED
BUOEFTRR - REBRIBOHME R
AR VA RBEERMAERR -
7200712 A31 B AR 15% &)
BEMEHMNCEMGE - B8
EEFMFEMRE  RBHELEEERE
FEMMARIBAHIEEER - 7]
REMFEZEREAIPEME
FRiEHt » RIEEEIFEMEKFLE
Ho

BRI B B ED - 5 R 4R E B B R A7
1B R A TR IR A B ER S
N 7 3 BB IS 7 B A R SR el RE )
AMY(BAFE[2011]585%) » AR B K
Bae 7E 0 b [ A B 2R 5% B 8 = A9 A
AIEELE  EEBEEXTER
AMEREAKRARNTO% A LR 7
201 F E2020F F JZ » WL 15%
BB R B ERREH o Bt - K
SERAERHE 2 HBAREES
TR B 15% (20114 © 15%) °

11.

TAXATION (Continued)

Pursuant to the State Council Circular on the Implementation of
the Transitional Concession Polices for Enterprise Income Tax (Guo
Fa [2007] no. 39), enterprises previously entitled to a reduced
tax rate shall have a grace period of five years regarding the tax
reduction commencing on 1 January 2008; the subsidiaries which
were entitled to a 15% enterprise income tax rate will be subject
to tax rates of 18% in 2008, 20% in 2009, 22% in 2010, 24% in
2011 and 25% in 2012 and thereafter.

Subsidiaries in the PRC which engage in manufacture and sale of
instant noodles, beverages and instant food products are subject
to tax laws applicable to foreign investment enterprises in the
PRC. Most of the subsidiaries are located at state-level economic
development zones and were entitled to a preferential PRC
enterprise income tax rate of 15% before 31 December 2007.
Also, they were fully exempt from PRC enterprise income tax for
two years starting from the first profit-making year followed by
a 50% reduction for the next three years, commencing from the
first profitable year after offsetting all unexpired tax losses carried
forward from the previous years.

According to the Tax Relief Notice (Cai Shui [2011] no. 58) on
the Grand Development of Western Region jointly issued by
the Ministry of Finance, the State Administration of Taxation
and China Customs, foreign investment enterprises located in
the western region of PRC with principal revenue of over 70%
generated from the encouraged business activities are entitled to
a preferential income tax rate of 15% for 10 years from 1 January
2011 to 31 December 2020. Accordingly, certain subsidiaries
located in the Western Region are entitled to a preferential rate of
15% (2071:15%).
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/ BRB K5t Notes to the Financial Statements /

HZE2012F 12 A31BLLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2012

11. BIEE) 11. TAXATION (Continued)
NEE 7 BB BREERE25% The taxation on the Group's profit before taxation differs from
& (20114 : 25% ) EAF AT F 2 theoretical amount that would arise using the statutory tax rate in
BBz =R A the PRC of 25% (2071 25%)) as follows:
FERT v HE Reconciliation of tax expenses
2012 2011
FET FET
Us$000 Us$’000
BREE AR R Profit before taxation 827,892 662,976
LR EEERE 25% Income Tax at statutory tax rate of 25%
ZHIE(20114F - 25%) in the PRC (2071:25%) 206,973 165,744
s KA EARIEE Results of associates and jointly
controlled entities (991) —
NE[ B 2 Non-deductible expenses 23,230 17,059
R AR Tax exempt revenue (52,973) (31,869)
RIERHIAEE Unrecognised tax losses 30,448 12,081
RERERFEER Unrecognised temporary differences 2,582 201
MBRBAEN RFERTIBEE  Utilisation of previously
unrecognised tax losses (5,522) (109)
BAEEPNHBZHB AR Effect of tax concessions granted to
FrigHi 2 mEEER R the Group's PRC subsidiaries — (4,247)
EEMEREE Effect of preferential tax rates (567) (10,638)
Nk N O Effect of tax relief on PRC's
FT /B A 7l 2 B UR 2 subsidiaries in Western Region (8,465) (7,852)
BAEBENPEZHEAR  Effect of withholding tax on the
A D FO AR 2 FA TR R distributable profits of the Group's
(K17E 33) PRC subsidiaries (note 33) 20,478 23,764
LARTEE D&t (Z5H) B  Under/(Over) provision in prior years 8,082 (5,446)
Hitp Others 4,488 4,584
REFFIA Tax expense for the year 227,763 163,272
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HZE2012F 12 A31BLLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2012

12.

BREERF

& SR B (R4 & a1 B 1EE51E 38,475,000
EJT(20114F © i 748,447,000 7T )

12.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the Company
includes a loss of US$38,475,000 (207 1: profit of US$48,447,000)

ERANATZEEB REHERIE - which has been dealt with in the financial statements of the
Company.
Lt e =mEAN T AREE % H 2 Reconciliation of the above amount to the Company's profit for
Ea0E ¢ the year:
2012 2011
FETT FETT
Uss$’000 Us$°000
ERARQRERE NRIE Amount of consolidated (loss)/profit
KRR (LR A attributable to owners dealt with in
(E518) = 7 the Company's financial statements (38,475) 48,447
E—BIBRFEHER 2 E(E  Dividends from subsidiaries and
B AR M EARAE  associates attributable to the profits of
WERFRNERERIKE  the previous financial years,
approved and paid during the year 199,766 116,832
REZARRE @ Company's profit for the year 161,291 165,279

/30 \ Betiz198RAT TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.



13.

R

(a)

=}

ARBFEBEARRNFEERZ

/ BRB K5t Notes to the Financial Statements /

HZE2012F 12 A31BLLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2012

13. DIVIDENDS

(@) Dividends payable to owners of the Company attributable to

Az 8 : the year:
2012 2011
FET FE7T
Us$000 Us$°000
HEE %R 2 AREBAR S Final dividend proposed after the end of
BiRE AR the reporting period of US3.22 cents
3.22 =1 (2011: US3.75 cents) per ordinary share
(20114 : /%
B 3. 75 %) 180,091 209,629

MR201343F18A B & = -
EEE@RERARSSRYE
AR 3.22 F Al o HEEZE KRR
BRI AR R R R TR B
RS - BHEARSEEZE 2013
FI12A3MBLEFEZRE &
o

RAFARERKERBR £
—UMBRFEETARBHEBAZ

At meeting held on 18 March 2013, the directors
recommended the payment of final dividend of US3.22
cents per ordinary share. The proposed final dividend has
not been recognised as dividend payables in the statement
of financial position, but will be reflected as an appropriation
of retained profits for the year ending 31 December 2013.

(b) Dividends payable to owners of the Company attributable
to the previous financial year, approved and paid during the

JESHR R ¢ year:
2012 2011
FETT FET
Us$000 Us$°000
RZARE R L& R Final dividend in respect of the
RE AR EE B previous financial year, approved and
BIEE AR E paid during the year, of US3.75 cents
y=EST &R il (2011: US4.27 cents) per ordinary share
3.75 %Al
(20114 : &R
ZAR4.27 F 1) 209,707 238,609
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/ BREMI5F Notes to the Financial Statements /

HZE2012F 12 A31BLLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2012

14. SREFI 14. EARNINGS PER SHARE
V=<3 &=V ;S| PSE=T T 3 Pid The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share is as
MzatE - follows:
(a) BREREF (a) Basic earnings per share
2012 2011
RNAFIRREANFEN  Profit attributable to ordinary
wA (F3ETT) shareholders (US$’'000) 455,171 419,545
B TL MR 2 I  Weighted average number of
FEH R E(FR) ordinary shares ('000) 5,591,945 5,588,567
FREEAHE R (ML) Basic earnings per share (US cents) 8.14 7.51
(b) BREHEF (b) Diluted earnings per share
2012 2011
RRARRRFANMEMN  Profit attributable to ordinary
@ M (F3=7T) shareholders (US$'000) 455,171 419,545
ZBR K192 Weighted average number of ordinary
(B2 )(FHR) shares (diluted) ('000)
BETEBIR 2N Weighted average number of ordinary shares
F IR EK 5,591,945 5,588,567
R BB T &l Effect of the Company's share option scheme
ZRE 19,952 24,949
AREFTEESREE Weighted average number of ordinary
i A2 AR shares for the purpose of calculating
Nt F19 88 diluted earnings per share 5,611,897 5,613,516
R EESEEF (S=1I)  Diluted earnings per share (US cents) 8.11 7.47
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HZE20129F12A31BLLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2012

15. ¥  MBRZE 15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(@) #5H (@) Group
B
e Rk
& Electrical
Machinery  appliances  EBRfs  EEIR

BT and and  Miscellaneous  Construction fit
Buildings ~ equipment  equipment  equipment in progress Total

TEIL TR TET TETL e TAT
Usfooo  Ussoo0  Ussoo0  USSO00  USSO00 LSS0

BHESE-8Z Reconciliation of carrying amount -
01112831 BIEFE  year ended 31 December 2011

RE] At beginning of year 545,241 1,671,39% 14,218 111,088 580,995 2,922,936
RE Additions 20,904 225,592 4,280 113,767 984,946 1,349,489
Rk Transfer upon completion 86,548 486,191 28 19725 (592,746) -
HESEWE) Impairment loss (Note /) — (4,169) - - - (4,169)
B EES R Reversal of impairment loss (Vote ) - 3,500 - - - 3,500
e Disposals (50,553) (3,058) (282) (2,552) = (56,445)
ik Depreciation (36,191) (199,637) (4.455) (77,261) = (317,544)
ERER Exchange differences 25626 72,431 535 5955 27,558 132,105
REER At end of the reporting period 591,575 2,252,244 14,578 170,722 1,000,753 4,029,872
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HZE2012F 12 A31BIEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2012

15. Y)¥ - R E(E) 15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

(a) E&EE(E) (@) Group (Continued)

He SET ]
K#&#E  Electrical
Machinery  appliances ~ BBRfE = ERIR
BT and and Miscellaneous Construction fit
Buildings  equipment  equipment  equipment in progress Total
T£n FE7 FEn TE7 F£7 F£71
Usso00 Uss 000 Uss000 Uss000 Uss000 Uss 000
FEEHR-82 Reconciliation of carrying amount -
2012512 A31ALLEE  year ended 31 December 2012
REA) At beginning of year 591575 2,252,244 14,578 170722 1000753 4,029,872
AE Additions 30,31 172,994 3,712 83,281 552,858 843,156
RE-FHAK Additions - business combination 164,653 186377 4,795 118,139 13,389 487,353
ENRER Transfer upon completion 170,701 359,923 149 15,140  (545913) -
BN Reclassification - - (393) 393 - -
HESEWE) Impairment loss (Vote - (13,900) - - - (13,900)
FESEREE ) Reversal of impairment loss (Vote - 3,487 — — — 3,487
& Disposals (703) (3,719 (650) (3,195) — (8,267)
bk Depreciation (42,821) (223,200 (5,284) (109,540) - (380,845)
EREE Exchange differences 5,837 21,991 9% 2,254 10,702 40,880
REEH At end of the reporting period 919,55 2,756,197 17,003 277,19 1,031,789 5,001,736
w2012%1A1A At 1 January 2012
(& Cost 843,503 3,498,465 38,174 355,998 1,000,753 5,736,893
ZHMEMFESE  Acumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (251,928)  (1,246,221) (23,596) (185,276) —  (1,707,021)
REEE Net carrying amount 591,575 2,250,244 14,578 170722 1,000753 4029872
#2012512831R At 31 December 2012
R(E Cost 1,269,279 4,394,510 52,184 698,183 1,031,789 7,445,945
ZHFENAMESE  Accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (349,726)  (1,638,313) (35,181) (420,989) — (2,444,209
REFE Net carrying amount 919,553 2,756,197 17,003 277,19 1,031,789 5,001,736

/134 ‘ Betiz198RAT TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.



15. ¥1% - #BERRE(

(a)

Hiat -

(if)

AEE(E)

FRAEBERT THAOBENR
bt BRRMEEGNEA @ &
TSR 2 AT U [l B T o — Lhik
BREARPBERNERLCES
BE - BB EREER KL
B 18 13,900,000 JT(2011 4 :
4,169,000 7T ) ~ e H 2
A E S BT ERERE AR E
AR BT 5 £ RS R
AR MBEEHR2ENEE
A FR - EBEREH - —
LEAFERBEZHEEREERE
BAREEFELRFZES - B
HER ASEEENFHETEL
WS SRl 2 AT YR Bl & &8 - [
B 18 25 3,487,000 3% JT (2011 4 -
3,500,000%7T) °

REEH AEEETHBEA RN
EEZHRFNEREET  BEF
B #8%8 /105,955,000 % 7T.(2071
F: 60,743,000% ¢ ) > & F R
B AEBAAEEURFEREL
FEEY) o

/ BRB K5t Notes to the Financial Statements /

HZE2012F 12 A31BLLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2012

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

(@) Group (Continued)

Notes :

0]

(ii)

During the year, the Group carried out a review of the
recoverable amounts of its manufacturing machineries,
having regards to the ongoing programme of modernisation,
expansion and the introduction of new product lines. The
review determined that a number of those assets were to
be impaired due to prolonged period of being idle and
technical obsolescence. Accordingly, the carrying amounts
of these manufacturing machineries were written down by
US$13,900,000 (20717 US$4,169,000). The estimates of
the recoverable amounts of these manufacturing plant and
machineries, principally based on their fair value less costs to
sell,were determined by reference to the recent observable
market prices for similar assets in the market. During the
year, due to successful reformation, certain machineries
which have been impaired previously, are currently used in
production of more profitable products. At the end of the
reporting period, the Group re-assessed the recoverable
amounts of these machineries and impairment loss of
US$3,487,000 was reversed (2071: US$3,500,000).

At the end of the reporting period, some subsidiaries of the
Group are in the process of applying for building ownership
certificates of premises with aggregate net carrying amount
of US$105,955,000 (2011: US$60,743,000). In the opinion
of directors, the Group validly occupies and uses these
buildings.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)
15. % - BRERRE(E)

(b) Company

(b) ZE2F
2012 201
BE Be
T ] G
Machinery — HEHRfE Machinery — HIBRfE
and Miscellaneous ait and  Miscellaneous ait
equipment  equipment Total  equipment  equipment Total
FE7 FE7 FEn TET £ TET
Uss000 Uss000 Uss000 Us$000 Us$000 Uss000
BHEHE Reconciliation of carrying amount
REF] At beginning of the year 67 R 99 90 30 120
hE Additions - - - = 12 12
e Disposals - — - (1) (1) )
E Depreciation 22 8 (30) 22) 9 (1)
ERER Exchange differences 2 1 3 - = =
REEH At end of the reporting period 47 25 n 67 3 9
R12A31H At 31 December
RfE Cost 870 63 933 835 62 897
ZitiE Accumulated depreciation (823) (38) (861) (769) (30) (798)
REFE Net carrying amount 4 25 n 67 3 9
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/ BRB K5t Notes to the Financial Statements /

16. INTANGIBLE ASSET

HZE2012F 12 A31BLLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2012

TEH
Group
B
Concession right
2012 2011
FET FET
Us$000 Us$’00o
IREEH R Reconciliation of carrying amount
RNEBE-EBast Additions — business combination 29,377 —
e 5H Amortisation (566) —
R&EER At end of the reporting period 28,811 —
R&ER At end of the reporting period
DN Cost 29,377 —
RETEE 5 Accumulated amortization (566) —
28,811 =

BVEAEREEREGHEMEL ZFIR
M FHNGA ISR HTEE 38 o KR result of a business combination as set out in the note 38 to the
ERRTAEENRE  ®h - 8% 9
HEHE B SMBARm([CSD)) REHL
o R EE on - DA R B AR B RO RF B R AR Ak
BARE - EEERREHVIE 2394
H - BEARETIREN -

L

The intangible asset represents concession right acquired as a

consolidated financial statements. The concession right granted
to the Group for manufacturing, bottling, packaging, distributing
and selling PepsiCo’s carbonated soft drink (“CSD"”) and Gatorade
branded products on a royalty free basis under a specific

trademark in the PRC is amortised on the straight-line basis over

the contract period of approximately 39 years.
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HZE2012F 12 A31BLLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2012

16. BREE(Z) 16. INTANGIBLE ASSET (Continued)

BHCEERKBREZARBERS
HBVEEREXGHEMERZR
RBHERMREATEEGAEBE 5t
E 4 %8/529,377,000E 7T o % B R
BEABEENRBAERESITH
—iE - AERST SR EEN
FREABR #4939 & (F CBLE E E1E(A 5T
RE#) B B FTER - B iE A F EH
RemENRPERRELHEER
3% o FETRAIHARE A ISR EER
& CBLAE YR A 2 2 TH 5 ER 5 2 CBL
WEBRBHE 2 RRMETEER -
Bagag o mBEeRENE
EH/17.34%  RBEERIMENER
REEEN G RETEEENEE
[B o

BRVEERBRARAGE - R
ERFHAERSETHIFLERD
RE R -

The fair value of the concession right at the date of acquisition
is determined based on value-in-use calculations and is valued
at US$29,377,000 by an independent qualified professional
valuer using the Multi-period Excess Earnings Method. The Multi-
period Excess Earnings Method is a form of discounted cash flow
analysis which is based on the profit forecast of the concession
right throughout the economic useful life of the concession right
of approximately 39 years as estimated and approved by the
management of CBL. Cash flows beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated using the estimated long term growth rate stated
at 3%. The growth rate adopted during the projection period is
based on the market conditions existed at the date of acquisition
and the expected performance of CBL as estimated by the
management of CBL. The discount rate applied to the discounted
cash flow of the concession right is 17.34% that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the concession right.

Intangible assets are measured after recognition under cost model.
The concession right is tested for impairment where an indicator
of impairment appears.
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HZE2012F 12 A31BLLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2012

17. MBARIRER INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES
¥/
Company

2012 2011

FET FET

us$’0oo Us$'000

JE MM - IRRESIEE  Unlisted shares, at cost 345,788 343,739
ESR)ENGIE S =il Contribution to a subsidiary 13,851 6,422
BB EE Impairment losses (33,065) (33,065)
326,574 317,096

N ENGIE S Amounts due from subsidiaries 496,725 248,764
BB 1B Impairment losses (12,908) (10,853)
483,817 237,911
FE I B A =) F IR Amounts due to subsidiaries (43,724) (50,513)
766,667 504,494

AR EBH KB A RS 2 REEAR
Hallk bl &5 - REEBERIIRZ
B /B8~ =) # = Bk T 836,613,000 €
TCIN(20114 : 36,613,000 7T ) (R
BEIERT) °

BRI HE R RN ANFEE SRS
BEBITETRBEREERESR
B (B &5 $817,427,0003 JT(2011
F ;17,124,000 %) ERHI R ZHT
B ABREE 2,055,000 E 7T 7 fE IR
FKIBR(20114F : 1,759,000 7T )
CREEIERT) °

FEU AT B X R 2 BRI R K
- 2R MEEEERY  XEHN
AEERRT—EARNR, B -

MR2012F 12 A3 BT EH B A 7
ZFEBY R EE43 -

W58 B (] BB A AR AN 4 sk AR
EEBEEES -

Impairment losses were recognised for certain interest in
subsidiaries with carrying amounts of US$36,613,000 (2071:
US$36,613,000) (before deducting the impairment loss) because
their carrying values exceed the recoverable amounts of the assets.

An impairment was recognised for amounts due from certain
subsidiaries with carrying amounts of US$17,427,000 (2071.
US$17,124,000) (before deducting the impairment loss) because
the subsidiaries were expected to suffer continuous losses with no
positive cash flows in the foreseeable future. Impairment loss of
US$2,055,000 (2011: US$1,759,000) has been recognised during
the year.

Amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free
and have no fixed repayment term but are not expected to be
realised/repaid within the next twelve months after the end of the
reporting period.

Details of principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2012 are shown in
note 43.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding
during the year or at the end of the reporting period.
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HZE2012F 128318 1LFE

For the year ended 31 December 2012

L

Eaz

|/

53

18. BiENTIER 18. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES
rEH
Group
2012 2011
FET T
Uss°000 Us$°000
FEEMR - BEANME Unlisted shares, at cost 19,639 —
FEAE W B 12 35 75 Share of post-acquisition results 1,685 —
21,324 =
REE HEL AT ZBHA5mT - Details of the associates at the end of the reporting period are as

follows:

TEER/
R

Principal place

BE-EFZENELAR

BEZRRLH

Proportion of

FREREZ
B ELA

Proportion of

of operation/ FMA  voting right held nominal value of
BENTER Place of Registered  through a non-wholly  equity interest held FE£%
Name of associates incorporation capital owned subsidiary by the Group Principal activities
2012 2011 2012 2011
MMBETERHERRE  H USD10,400,000 25% —  23.75% — BERHESRM
Hangzhou Pepsi-cola PRC Manufacture and sale
Beverage Co., Ltd. of beverages
ERAFUESHERRR  PE USD16,000,000 50% —  23.75% — RENHESE
Nanjing Pepsi-cola PRC Manufacture and sale

Beverage Co., Ltd.
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18. BELNEER(E)

/ BRB K5t Notes to the Financial Statements /

HZE20129F12A31BLLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2012

18. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

B ARATZHBERREMNT : Summary of financial information of associates in aggregate are as
follows:
REH
Group
2012 2011
FET T
Uss’000 Us$000

R E AT 2EEREM®E Share of associates’ assets and liabilities

FRBEE
MENEE
FRBEME
mBEE

Non-current assets 15,835 =
Current assets 23,170 =
Non-current liabilities — =
Current liabilities (17,681) —

FELEE QT 2 WE K EF  Share of associates’ revenue and profit

19.

& Revenue 52,904 —
i Al Profit 1,652 —
FER - BMEARTNMBEHRERE Adjustments have been made to the financial statements of
MAFE  LBRRESFTHERE associates when necessary to align their accounting policies of
NEBFFEABBUR - associates to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

S8 AR

B

19. INTEREST IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

AEE

Group
2012 2011
FET F=ET
Us$000 Us$°000
LMD - EBAE Unlisted shares, at cost 60,909 —
FEMR BSR4 Share of post-acquisition results 2,205 —
63,114 —

20/2 Annual Report 3§ ‘ /4/



/ BRB K3 Notes to the Financial Statements /

HZE2012F 12 A31BLLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2012

19. EELNTIER(E) 19. INTEREST IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES
(Continued)
REERESE AR ZRAMESMT ¢ Details of the jointly controlled entities at the end of the reporting

period are as follows:

TEEE/
Eidilipioh AEEREZ
Principal PREEEL G
place of Proportion of
operation/  EMBRA nominal value of
BENREH Place of Registered equity interest TEER
Name of jointly controlled entities incorporation capital held by the Group Principal activities
2012 2011
BENRMERERAF h USD8,000,000 31.25% — RERHERXEM
Fujian Sintongho Foods Co., Ltd. PRC Process and sale of
agricultural products
% (M) REBBRAF i USD20,000,000 45% — HERHETREM
Calbee (Hangzhou) Foods Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of
snack food products
FE (RI) RmARAF I USD24,000,000 60% — RERHEENERE
Kangpu (Wujiang) Food Co., Ltd. PRC Process and sale of
meat products
LEBEAESHERAA h USD28,120,000 23.75% — BERHERSA
Shanghai Pepsi-cola Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
ERARUESHERAR PE RMB150,000,000 38% — SUERHERm
Jinan Pepsi-cola Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
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HZE2012F 12 A31BLLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2012

19. BELNRERE) 19. INTEREST IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES
(Continued)
BERNRAFTZHBERBENT : Summary of financial information of jointly controlled entities in
aggregate are as follows:
REH
Group
2012 2011
FErT FETT
Us$’000 Us$000
EhEE AT 2EEREME Share of jointly controlled entities’ assets
and liabilities
FEMBNE E Non-current assets 37,204 —
MENEE Current assets 89,480 —
ERBEE Non-current liabilities (6) —
mEafE Current liabilities (63,564) —
EBEAE QT zWERER Share of jointly controlled entities’
revenue and profit
Was Revenue 144,394 —
il Profit 2,314 —
ot B RS R T B B B AN = B — B The above financial information is prepared using the same
&S o accounting policies as those adopted by the Group.
20. T BE 20. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS
TR G ERMARNBPEIBRNZH Prepaid lease payments represent cost paid for medium-term
HAFHE + M Ak R o Lk AN IR A S EA leasehold land in the PRC. The cost is amortised over the leasehold
B4l o A& E H 128 A K FE Y period. The amount to be amortised within twelve months after
% % /A6,754,000E TT(2011 4 - the end of the reporting period amounted to US$6,754,000
4,290,000 ¢ ) B 5t AFE N R IE & (2011.: US$4,290,000) and is included in prepayments and other
Hib U kIE o receivables.
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21. AHEELRSEE 21. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS
REHE AT
Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
TFE FET FEr FET
Us$’000 Us$°'000 Uss$’000 US$°000
RNEBLSNZ T Equity security, listed outside
IR ANTE 5 E Hong Kong
NRE At fair value 34,947 92,518 — 55,095
MEREES Private investment funds
NRE At fair value 16,677 8,496 16,677 8,496
JFEHRAES  Equity securities, unlisted
[RE At costs 11,452 11,452 3,140 3,140
EEE Impairment losses (8,044) (8,044) (342) (342)
3,408 3,408 2,798 2,798
55,032 104,422 19,475 66,389

FTRBZRARBEUNEEELRRS
FTEMARBEAREBETE - 24
EE2EEHBERARETUANEL A
EREEEHEREBERN @8 A
4,193,000% 7T(20114F : KX EH A
R EE (B 16,733,0003
) °

FEREESARMEEIINER 2K
B HRIAKIRNABRESNER
BEREBLERKINKEBELS
WM AERETAR - AEDTH
WEHRAEB K - RNQRE R4 I &
7 A It &5 E £ % & 451 50,000,000
X JL(20114F : 50,000,000 7T ) *
i H /18,967,0003 Jt(20114F :
8,496,000)FE TTE RNEF AL A °
ARESEFTEWERKZFUERS
AERBEEHERGBERN ©8A
786,000 T0(20114F : #) »

The fair value of the listed securities is determined based on the
guoted market bid price available in the Taiwan Stock Exchange.
Changes in fair value of US$4,193,000 (2071: US$16,733,000
were debited to investment revaluation reserve) were credited to
investment revaluation reserve.

The private investment funds represent investments in two
overseas funds which were set up by limited partnership in
Cayman Islands and liability limited by shares in British Virgin
Islands respectively, aim at achieving substantial return. The
Company has entered into agreements and committed to invest
in aggregate of US$50,000,000 (2071. US$50,000,000) in these
funds, of which amount of US$8,967,000 (2071 US$8,496,000)
was paid during the reporting period. The fair values of these
funds are valued by the respective investment managers at the
end of the reporting period. Changes in fair value of US$786,000
(2011: US$Nil) were debited to investment revaluation reserve.
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21.

AHHESHEE(E) 21.

FLEMREBFRLETRARS 2K
HERE ENFTEBEMEALAEBE
MEEHREESER EFERRHF
EmREZ AR EETEER S
B WIFLTEFDARERER
BEBZREE -

AL ESREEDATIEET

/ BRB K5t Notes to the Financial Statements /

HZE20129F12A31BLLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2012

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

The unlisted equity securities are measured at cost less impairment
loss at the end of each reporting period because the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that the directors
are of the opinion that their fair values cannot be measured
reliably. The Group has no intention to dispose of these unlisted
equity securities.

The available-for-sale financial assets are denominated in the

& : following currencies:
REH AT
Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
FET FETL FETT FETL
Uss$’000 US$°000 Uss’000 Us$°000
Sy us$ 17,692 9,510 17,692 9,510
AR RMB 732 732 — —
e New Taiwan dollar (“NTD") 36,382 93,954 1,557 56,653
HAb Others 226 226 226 226
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HZE2012F 12 A31BIEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2012

22. BAABHEYIRREEZIREE  22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT

NEMEE OR LOSS
TEH AT
Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
FET FET FET FETT
Uss$‘000 US$°000 Uss$’000 US$°000
BEEERE Investments held for trading
—REBLAINET  Equity securities, listed outside
TN Hong Kong 640 551 640 551
—ETE¥ES US$ currency fund — 9 — 9
640 560 640 560

BAREBEIGRRERGEREEZ
TREETATINEEINE

The financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
denominated in the following currencies:

rEE PN
Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
FET FZET FET FET
USs$°000 Us$'000 USs$°000 Us$'000
= us$ — 9 — 9
e NTD 640 551 640 551
23. ®E 23. INVENTORIES
AEE
Group
2012 2011
FET FET
USs$°000 Us$000
YRES Raw materials 188,393 145,095
E& Work in progress 13,665 14,909
IR Finished goods 276,055 152,558
478,113 312,562
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24. FEURBRFX

/ BRB K5t Notes to the Financial Statements /

HZE20129F12A31BLLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2012

24. TRADE RECEIVABLES

REH

Group
2012 2011
FET FET
Uss’000 Us$'000

JE YR X Trade receivables

—E= — From third parties 226,815 155,040
/NG — From associates 2,289 —
—HE QT — From jointly controlled entities 4,000 —
233,104 155,040

REBZHERNG N SE YR -
HRTHHEZEERNERR30E0
R o BRAEKRRNRIER KRR
BEBE) NEERREZEHRER
ZERE DM IIREAT

The majority of the Group’s sales is cash-on-delivery. The
remaining balances of sales are mainly at credit term ranging from
30 to 90 days. The ageing analysis of trade receivables (net of
impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts), based on invoice
date, at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

AEE

Group
2012 2011
SE=S FET
us$’ooo Us$000
0-90k 0 - 90 days 215,991 146,883
90 KA E Over 90 days 17,113 8,157
233,104 155,040
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24. BWERAK (A)
B 38 BB SR AL PR A A

24. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The ageing analysis of trade receivables which are past due but
not impaired is as follows:

rEH

Group
2012 2011
FZET TFETT
uss‘000 US$°000

ERBIBIEFIRE 2 JEWGKTE  Balances exceeded normal credit period:

#BHI30 KA Within 30 days 13,681 4,567
BHEI31 = 90K 31-90 days 12,748 3,214
B AR R 90 K Over 90 days 2,802 2,665
29,231 10,446

BELRBERRENRKENR =
KEAKREZRAE RIFLENE
VYEF - ARNEGFEBYEEANE
b AEBILEEELRFBREE
BWE YHEEREER/ELERRA
Yo m o 7 62 B30 R 15 A (A B4 L
KRR A -

55 LE JF 180 HA 3l R ORI (E A0 B UK AR AR
B2 B P HAY B4 R AR AR RC 8%

EWRRREEAARKSIE

The trade receivables that are past due but not impaired related
to a number of independent customers that have a good track
record with the Group. The Group has not impaired these debtors
as there has not been a significant change in credit quality and
the directors believe that the amounts are recoverable. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
wide range of customers for whom there was no recent history of
default.

The trade receivables are mainly denominated in RMB.
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HZE2012F 12 A31BLLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2012

25. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

rEH KAF
Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
i3 T FET FET FETL
Note Us$'000 Us§000 Uss$’000 Us$000
TR EK Prepayments to suppliers for purchase
of goods 23,587 5,179 — =
TAfS &AM Prepayments for purchase of equipment 6,852 30,010 — —
FEft 3 FAA)  Prepayment for purchase of prepaid
ikl lease payment 15,779 9,060 — —
THFE4EE  Current portion of prepaid lease payment
mENER D 6,754 4,290 — —
TBRIEER Prepaid value-added taxes 106,964 71,874 — —
TE{T & @RS Prepaid operating expenses 168,340 119,591 — —
FEWE K Loan receivables 25(a) 25,039 102,393 — —
Hith Others 65,362 25,417 793 992
418,677 367,814 793 992
() EWEN (@) Loan receivables

BRERTEAEBZHER
AIERTEEMBHERHE
EBERBRZRIE - LWERIK
BERABERTE AR —FRNE
ENMFEHR6.00%%E6.57%
(20114 : 535% F7.02% )
B® -

ARBEZEHMLFETHR
mERRT _EARZHENK
B o RIFABRITHISHEITE
ZEMARFR SR ZBERH
B BEEREEERZAR
EEEEGEERmEMES -

EREHERT|EBMER
MZHE  EEKREREE
R SAEH B

Loan receivables represent the advances by wholly owned
subsidiaries of the Company to raw materials suppliers of
the Group for the purpose of the operations use of the
suppliers. The loan receivables are unsecured, repayable
within 12 months from the date of drawdown and bear
interest ranging from 6.00% to 6.57% (2011 from 5.35%
to 7.02%) per annum.

The directors expected the amounts will be realised in the
next twelve months after the end of the reporting period.
The fair value of the amounts as at the end of the reporting
period, determined based on the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted using prevailing
market rate, approximate their corresponding carrying
amount.

At the end of the reporting period, there was no interest
due but unpaid and no provision had been made for non-
repayment of the advances and interest.
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HZE2012F 12 A31BLLFE
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26. FEUWHE A RRIR 26. AMOUNTS DUE FROM A SUBSIDIARY
UK B8 A 7] 2 X IE £ %8 310,000,000 Amounts due from a subsidiary of US$310,000,000 (2077:
% Ju(20114 : 160,000,000% 7T ) US$160,000,000) are unsecured, bearing interest ranging from
AEI A 4 B1.45%E4.00% 1.45% to 4.00% (2011: 1.45%) per annum and repayable within
(20114 : 1.45%) RER —FNEE 1 year.
ZER e
27. RERFERBLER 27. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
rEE
Group
2012 2011
FET FET
Uss$‘000 Us$'000
RITHEB MRS Bank balances and cash 830,225 590,390
HEIRRITIF K Pledged bank deposits 7,673 9,662
RizEREMERIR As stated in the consolidated statement
of cash flows 837,898 600,052
RITERE THES - EAREAS The pledged bank deposits are secured for general banking and
—RIRTTRESMENRITEE trade finance facilities, including the issuance of bank acceptance
Z B o bills, granted to the Group by banks.
HeNERIESEEHNUTYEKS The cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following
B : currencies:
rEE
Group
2012 2011
FET FET
Us$’000 Us$000
AR RMB 754,946 500,352
e uss$ 44,859 81,645
BT EUR 3,333 12,897
wek NTD 33,085 2,426
Hth Others 1,675 2,732
BEAEEZINERK R =ERRK Details of the Group's foreign currency risk and credit risk
HIER D - MR 41 Sk o discussion are set out in note 41.
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HZE20129F12A31BLLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2012

28. BITRA 28. ISSUED CAPITAL
P NN
Company
2012 2011
4= FET RHEE FET
No. of shares USs000 | No. of shares Us$000
SETE Authorised:
Hh%0.005%7T Ordinary shares of US$0.005 each
ZEmpR 7,000,000,000 35,000 |7,000,000,000 35,000
BEITRER ¢ Issued and fully paid:
REH] At the beginning of the year 5,590,113,360 27,951 |5,586,793,360 27,934
RIEBERSHERTE]  Shares issued under share option
BT 2R scheme 2,784,000 13 3,320,000 17
REER At the end of the reporting period  5,592,897,360 27,964 |5,590,113,360 27,951
20124 > 2,784,000 8% IR #E JE 17 (F During the year, 2,784,000 options were exercised to subscribe
LA 3R B K A B 2,784,000 & 78 A% A% for 2,784,000 ordinary shares of the Company at a consideration
% # KB 53,851,000 L H of US$3,851,000 of which US$13,000 was credited to share
13,0003 T 5 A B AR 0 W 4 & capital and the balance of US$3,838,000 was credited to the
3,838,000 Tt AKX = B ER - share premium account. US$1,033,000 has been transferred from
1,033,000 =T i B iR i A e eE i = the share-based payment reserve to the share premium account.

Pt Bk -
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/ BRB K3 Notes to the Financial Statements /

HZE2012F 12 A31BLLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2012

29. f&f 29. RESERVES
FAH Company
e emE  BRE REER
4 4 W EREE
Copital ~ BRMEE  FExchange Share-based  Investment  REBEF
redemption Share  translation ~ payment revaluation  Retained pit
reseve  premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total

T fEr TRt TRt TEr TRt AL
Usso00  Us§000  UsS000  Us§000  USSO00  Us§000  USS000

R2011E1R1H At 1 January 2011 45 291,280 (2,250) 8,050 7518 45,985 350,628
AEREN Profit for the year - - - - — 165279 165279
A2 EKE Other comprehensive income

ERER Exchange translation difference - — 54 — - — 54

M HESHEAE Fair value change in available-for-sale

MEE financial assets — - — — (18842 — (1884

Htt2ENRAE Total other comprehensive income - - 54 — (18842 —  (18,789)
REERHNEEE Total comprehensive income for the year - — 54 —  (18842) 165279 146,491
BANARRZRS Transactions with owners of the Company:

EnfERhIN R Equity-settled share-based transactions - - — 13349 - — 13309

REERETIE T RN Share issued under share option scheme - 7,557 - (2,003) - - 5,554

BT2010F KRS 2010 final divicend paid —  (192,624) - - — (45985  (238,609)
BRDNIRE Total transactions with owners

LRHBE of the Company —  (185,067) - 113 — (45985  (219,706)
W2011E12 4318 At 31 December 2011 45 106,213 (2,196) 19,39 (11,324) 165,279 277413
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/ BRB K5t Notes to the Financial Statements /

HZE2012F 12 A31BIEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2012

29. RE(E) 29. RESERVES (Continued)
ERAR(E) Company (Continued)
R RE pL ERE REER
R it s Bt
Capital  MRfEE Exchange Share-based Investment R
redemption Share translation  payment revaluation  Retained &g
reserve  premium reserve reserve  reserve profits Total

FAr  fExr fEr fEr TAr TEr TEx
USS000  USS000  USS000  USS000  USS000  USSO00  USS000

R2012E1818 At 1 January 2012 45 106,213 (2,19) 19,3% (11,324) 165279 271,413
RERET Profit for the year - - - - — 161291 161,291
A2 EKE Other comprehensive income
ERES Exchange translation difference - - (161) - - - (161)
fnESRAE Fair value change in avalable-for-sale
INNIVE L) financial assets - - - - (163 - (163
RERHETHHEESBEE  Redassification adjustment relating
LENERE to available-for-sale financial
assets disposed of in the year — — 2,555 — 12,174 — 14,729
A2 EREAR Total other comprehensive income - - 2,39 - 10,539 - 1298
FEEREUHRAT Total comprehensive income for the year - - 2,39 — 10539 161,291 174,24
BARARRZRS Transactions with owners of the Company:
EnfERhT e E Equity-settled share-based transactions - - - 1313 - - 13183
REERETIE T RN Share issued under share option scheme - 4,87 - (1,033) - - 3,838
B0 EXSRE 2011 final dividend paid - (4442) - - —  (165279)  (209,707)
BRDNARELZ Total transactions with owners
X8R of the Company - (39557) - 126% —  (165279)  (192,146)
R2012612 8318 At 31 December 2012 45 66,656 198 32,086 (785 161,291 259,491
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/ BRB K3 Notes to the Financial Statements /

HZE2012F 12 A31BLLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2012

29.

frt e (4

i”‘]H

B 40 PRl

BOHBOFEDIREREHEZA
BEB R B R EHEA ARG

AR -

B4R E

RIEMAESARIRE - B 27 G
BERIBRNE  TweAREHH
N ET ERTROEAEH
R BEHERERMNGERR

B aEBERZERAERERNSHE
NEEZRTE °

EREARIERMEZEBART @ &K
RNAIZ DR E R DI T IRE
HEARRBRDIKEENERENEE
FAEEBPIBHAMN 2ER - K
ANRIR2012F 12 A31 B 2] 5
& f 8 £227,947,0003 jT(2011
F 271,492,000 ) °

SHNERERE

SNEE R B 2 R M B IE TI AR IR
ARBERMRINEIRE 2 @FHHK -

29.

RESERVES (Continued)

Capital redemption reserve

Capital redemption reserve has been set up in accordance with
the provisions of the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands on
repurchases and cancellations of the Company’s own shares.

Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, where a
company issues shares at a premium, whether for cash or
otherwise, a sum equal to the aggregate amount of the value
of the premiums on their shares shall be transferred to share
premium account.

The application of the share premium account is governed by the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.

Share premium of the Company is distributable to shareholders
subject to the provisions of the Company’s Memorandum and
Articles of Association and provided that immediately following
the distribution the Company is able to pay its debts as they
fall due in the ordinary course of business. The Company’s
distributable reserves as at 31 December 2012 amounted to
US$227,947,000 (2011: US$271,492,000).

Exchange translation reserve

The exchange translation reserve has been set up and is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policies adopted for foreign
currency translation.
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/ BRB K5t Notes to the Financial Statements /

HZE2012F 12 A31BLLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2012

RESERVES (Continued)

General reserve

In accordance with the relevant PRC regulations, the PRC
subsidiaries are required to appropriate to the general reserve an
amount not less than 10% of the amount of profit after taxation
(as reported in the respective statutory financial statements of
the PRC subsidiaries prepared in accordance with PRC accounting
regulations). If the accumulated general reserve reaches 50%
of the registered capital of the respective PRC subsidiaries, the
subsidiary may not be required to make any further appropriation.

Share-based payment reserve

Share-based payment reserve comprises the fair value at the grant
date of unexercised share options granted to employees of the
Group and will be dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policy adopted for share-based payments as set out in note 3 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Investment revaluation reserve

The investment revaluation reserve has been set up and will be
dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies adopted for
the changes of fair value in available-for-sale financial assets as set
out in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.

Transactions with non-controlling interests reserve

Transactions with non-controlling interests reserve has been set up
and will be dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies
adopted for the changes in the Group’s ownership interest in a
subsidiary which do not result in a loss of control as set out in
note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.
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HZE2012F 12 A31BLLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2012
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30.

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTION

The Company's share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted
pursuant to a resolution passed on 20 March 2008. The Scheme
is a share incentive scheme and is established to recognise and
acknowledge the contributions the eligible participants (as defined
below) had or may have made to the Group.

The Board of Directors may, at its discretion, offer to grant an
option to:-

(i) any full-time or part-time employees, executives or officers
of the Company or any of its subsidiaries;

(i) any directors (including non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors) of the Company or
any of its subsidiaries; and

(i) any advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers and agents to
the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

Without prior approval from the Company's shareholders, the
maximum number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Scheme and under any other share option
schemes of the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10%
of the total number of shares in issue at the time the Scheme is
adopted by the shareholders (i.e. 20 March 2008). At the end of
reporting period, the number of shares in respect of which options
had been granted was 80,894,000 (2071: 71,194,000) and
remained outstanding under the Scheme was 69,189,000 (2071
62,273,000), representing 1.2% (2011 1.1%) of the shares of
the Company in issue at that date.

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted under the Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company (including
both exercised and outstanding options) to an individual in any
12-month period up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1%
of the shares in issue as at the date of grant. Any further grant
of options in excess of this 1% limit shall be subject to the
shareholders’ approval.
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/ BRB K5t Notes to the Financial Statements /

HZE2012F 12 A31BLLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2012

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTION
(Continued)

The exercise price is determined by the Company’s Board of
Directors, and will not be less than the higher of (i) the closing
price of the Company’s shares on the date of grant; (ii) the
average closing price of the shares for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal
value of the Company’s shares.

The period during which an option may be exercised will be
determined by the Company’s Board of Directors, save that no option
may be exercised more than 10 years after it has been granted.
The options will be vested after five years from the date of grant. A
nominal consideration at HK$1 was paid by each option holder for
each lot of share option granted. Each option gives the holder the
right to subscribe for one ordinary share in the Company.
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/ BRB K3 Notes to the Financial Statements /

HZE2012F 12 A31BLLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2012

30. MAERGEEROXAZRE( 30. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTION
(Continued)
ERTZEREFIBERN2011E R Details of share options granted by the Company pursuant to the
202F 12 A M HEFEE A ZEEMN Scheme and the share options outstanding as at 31 December
T 2012 and 2011 are as follows:
BT
REZE
Number of RITENBEREZE
®FHH share options Number of share IEE TEH
Grant date granted options outstanding  Exercise price Exercisable period
2012 2011 HK$
200843 H20H 11,760,000 8,760,000 9,760,000 928 2013§3H21HZE
20 March 2008 20183 H20H
21 March 2013 to
20 March 2018
200944 H22 H 26,688,000 21,042,000 22,404,000 938 2014F4H23RE
22 April 2009 201944 A 22 H
23 April 2014 to
22 April 2019
20104 HA1H 15,044,000 13,187,000 13,609,000 18.57 20154 A18 &
1 April 2010 20203 A31H
1 April 2015 to
31 March 2020
201154 H12H 17,702,000 16,500,000 16,500,000 19.96 20164 H12B=E
12 April 2011 20214 H118
12 April 2016 to
11 April 2021
20124 326 H 9,700,000 9,700,000 = 2054 2017%F4A26HZE
26 April 2012 2022F 4 H25H
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HZE20129F12A31BLLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2012

30. UERHEEROINZRE(E) 30. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTION
(Continued)
MARITEZ BIRENREMEFE ST Movements in the number of option outstanding and their
FEEZEBIT : weighted average exercise prices are as follows:
AEBRAQF
Group and Company
2012 2011
InFEFg I
TEE 1@
Weighted Weighted
average HEREHE average MEAREZE
exercise Number of exercise  Number of
price options price options
HKS$ ‘000 HK$ ‘000
REH At the beginning of year 14.18 62,273 12.10 49,714
RERTTEE Exercised during the year 10.74 (2,784) 13.14 (3,320)
REAFR T Granted during the year 20.54 9,700 19.96 17,702
RF R8I Forfeited during the year — — 15.48 (1,823)
REER At the end of the
reporting period 15.21 69,189 14.18 62,273
RIT/E R » F K17 R B IREE B N The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for
RSB B22.675% T (2011 shares options exercised during the year was HK$22.67 (2071:
4 23.5987T) HK$23.59).
MR2012%F 12 B31H ' MAITEE The options outstanding at 31 December 2012 had a weighted
RRREE IR T A4 H 5724 average remaining contractual life of 7.24 years (2011: 7.86
F(20114F : 7.86%F) » years).

20/ 2 Annual Report B 3§ ‘ /S‘[



/ BREMI5F Notes to the Financial Statements /

HZE2012F 12 A31BLLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2012

30. UESEEROINZRE(E) 30. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTION
(Continued)
HEREFRTFTEAZALBENIKRERE The fair value of the share options granted is measured at the
R EF AR - AZIBA B date of grant, using the binomial option pricing model, taking
HErTEEXET BZINFAE AR into account the terms and conditions of the share-based
BEENBRELFAEATEERER ZE arrangement. The fair value calculated is inherently subjective and
B AR BEZEAEBFELET uncertain due to the assumptions made and the limitations of the
EE - FEEREALERERY model used. The inputs into the model are as follows:-
BRI - —
W5 REBRE 2 B RE
Share options granted on

20125472608 (201148128 201064818 2009F4 A 2268 20083 A 20H

26 April 2012 12 April 2011 1 April 2010 22 April 2009 20 March 2008
BFBZARE Fair value at grant date 8R1.75 St 7.61 Bk 7.24 k334 Hk3.74

B BT BT BT B

HK$7.75 HK$7.61 HK$7.24 HK$3.34 HK$3.74

per share per share per share per share per share
Szl Gil Share price at grant date 8K 19.88 % 19.88 % 18.42 kR9.37 % 8.55

BT BT BT oy BT

HK$19.88 HK$19.88 HK$18.42 HK$9.37 HK$8.55

per share per share per share per share per share
TfE (B Exercise price §R20.54 0% 19.96 MR 18.57 %9.38 %9.28

B BT BT B BT

HK$20.54 HK$19.96 HK$18.57 HK$9.38 HK$9.28

per share per share per share per share per share
ERRERLNE Risk-free interest rate 4.21% 4.30% 4.10% 251% 4.37%
BERE Expected volatility 34% 31% 33% 36% 40%
BAEH Expected life 105 1046 10F 106 106

10 years 10 years 10 years 10 years 10 years
BAREE Expected dividend yield 2% 2% 2% 2% 2%
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HZE20129F12A31BLLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2012

30. UREREERBIZNZRE(E) 30. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTION
(Continued)
TEH R IR 2B E— FHERAF The expected volatility was determined by using the historical
BRI B4 KR sTEERK volatility of the Company’s share price over the last one year of
BALBERER 2SS LEERTIR share option granted. The variables and assumptions used in
EIREHEZ(hET o computing the fair value of the share options are based on the
directors’ best estimate.
75A2012¢ BERUR R ERZ AR During 2012, US$13,723,000 (2071: US$13,349,000) was
REEE R ST 2 I8 A 13,723,000 charged to profit or loss in respect of equity settled share-based
EJL(20114F © 13,349,000E7T ) ° transactions.
31. BEEE 31. INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS
REH PiN/NE]
Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
e FZETT SFESTT FZETT
Uss$’000 Us$°'000 us$’0oo Us$°000
BEEE - The maturity of the interest-bearing
2 ER borrowings is as follows:
1R Within one year 499,711 700,695 50,000 205,000
F2F In the second year 462,325 107,814 270,000 35,000
FE3FZEE5F  Inthe third to fifth years,
(B inclusive
BE2F) 522,436 441,568 494,136 170,000
1,484,472 1,250,077 814,136 410,000
WA Portion classified as
BN A EED current liabilities (499,711)|  (700,695) (50,000)|  (205,000)
FEmENE 5 Non-current portion 984,761 549,382 764,136 205,000
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HZE2012F 12 A31BLLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2012

31.
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31.

INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS

The weighted average effective interest rate on the interest-
bearing borrowings is 2.43% (2011: 1.32%) per annum.

On 20 June 2012, the Company issued notes with an aggregate
principal amount of US$500,000,000 (the “the Notes”) at the
issue price of 99.573% of the principal amount of the Notes with
net proceeds received of US$493,240,000. The Notes bear interest
from 20 June 2012 at 3.875% per annum, payable semi-annually
in arrears on 20 June and 20 December of each year, beginning
on 20 December 2012 and will mature on 20 June 2017 at the
principal amount. The Notes are the unsecured obligations of
the Company and they rank at least equally with other present
and future unsecured and unsubordinated obligations. The Notes
were issued to finance capital expenditures relating to the Group's
strategic alliance arrangement with PepsiCo, to repay certain bank
loans of the Group and for working capital and other general
corporate purposes.

The carrying value of the Notes payable at the end of the
reporting period is US$494,136,000 and included in the interest-
bearing borrowings with maturity in the third to fifth years. The
Notes are listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading
Limited. The fair value of the Notes payable as at 31 December
2012 was US$534,835,000.
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/ BRB K5t Notes to the Financial Statements /

HZE2012F 12 A31BLLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2012

INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS (Continued)

Some of the banking facilities are subject to the fulfillment of
covenants relating to certain of the Company’s balance sheet
ratios, as are commonly found in lending arrangements with
financial institutions. If the Company was to breach the covenants
the drawn down facilities would become repayable on demand.

The Company regularly monitors its compliance with these
covenants, is up to date with the scheduled repayments of the
term loans. Further details of the Company’s management of
liquidity risk are set out in note 41. As at 31 December 2012,
none of the covenants relating to drawn down facilities had been
breached (2071: None).

An analysis of the carrying amounts of the Group’s and the
Company's total borrowings by type is as follows:

rEE AT

Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
=0T FET FET FET
US$°000 US$'000 US$°000 Us$'000
B F) 2= At fixed rates 644,741 50,366 494,136 —
TFENA K At floating rates 839,731 | 1,199,711 320,000 410,000
1,484,472 | 1,250,077 814,136 410,000
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HZE2012F 12 A31BLLFE
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31. AEfEEE) 31. INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS (Continued)
BEEEUTYE®ETME : The interest-bearing borrowings are denominated in the following
currencies:
REME AT
Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
FET FET FET T
Uss‘000 Us3$°000 Uss’000 Us$000
ARE RMB 177,404 81,031 — —
ETT us$ 1,299,491 1,074,925 814,136 410,000
Hit JPY — 20,025 — =
BT EUR 7,577 74,096 — —
EEINERBRE G - M 41 5 Details of the Group's foreign currency risk and interest rate risk
it o discussion are set out in note 41.
32. ETIEAEE 32. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS
REHStg Defined contribution plans
$’$ BAEFATRR HERESEE The Group participates in defined contribution plans organised
BE2MARAHTEHE EEEREER by the relevant local government authorities in the PRC, Hong

$1077 BT 4 0 52 5 G AKET B) - 1B
MY EEELEEE
FAEZEEED LS ER - &
BB X LR T AR T
PEEXNE TRAEREELE
A o

Kong and Taiwan for its PRC, Hong Kong and Taiwan employees
respectively, whereby the Group is required to make monthly
contributions to these plans at certain percentage of the relevant
portion of the payroll of these employees to the pension scheme
to fund the benefits. The Group has no obligation for the payment
of retirement and other post-retirement benefits for the PRC
employees other than the monthly contributions described above.
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HZE2012F 12 A31BLLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2012

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (Continued)

Defined benefit plans

The Group has defined benefit plans for Taiwan employees.
Pension obligation is provided based on the length of service and
average monthly salary for the final six months of employment.
The contributions made by the Group during the year were
calculated based on advice from Messrs. Towers Watson, Taiwan
Branch (“Towers Watson”), an independent actuaries and
consultants. The latest actuarial valuation was performed by
Towers Watson as at 31 December 2012 using the projected unit
credit method.

The amounts included in the statement of financial position arising
from the obligation of the Group and the Company in respect of
its defined benefit plans are as follows:

rEE N F]
Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
FEE F=ET FET FET
Us$000 US$°000 Uss$’000 Us$°000
REFHEMIRME  Present value of unfunded
obligations 26,120 33,730 12,831 18,301
BIBAMRISAKA  Unrecognised negative past
REESHERER service cost 1,952 — 966 —
KRR 2 Unrecognised net actuarial losses
SFHRERIER (10,012) (19,666) (4,356) (9,876)
KB R ERN Net liability arising from defined
EERNFEE benefit obligation 18,060 14,064 9,441 8,425
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HZE20129F12A31BLLFE
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32. EIGRAEEE) 32. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (Continued)
REFEANE(E) Defined benefit plans (Continued)
AEBMWEERBEZSHOT - Movements in the present value of defined benefit obligations are

as follows:
AEE AAHE
Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
F*E7T FZET FE7T FET
Us$°000 Us$000 Us$000 Us$’000
REH] At beginning of year 33,730 27,037 18,301 15,538
NEZPRIEK A Current service cost 2,341 1,707 1,153 860
BB A Interest cost 614 550 333 225
FEE (Uez5)84k  Actuarial (gain) losses (7,016) 6,312 (4,153) 3,095
BBAARTEAAS  Negative past service cost (1,973) = (966) =
EENE=R Benefits paid (2,089) (932) (2,089) (932)
ME W Z=RE Exchange differences 513 (944) 252 (485)
REHER At end of the reporting period 26,120 33,730 12,831 18,301

RIINERE B ER PR -

Total amount of expense recognised in the consolidated income

statement:

AEH

Group
2012 2011
FET FET
Us$000 Us$°000
N E BRAS AR AN Current service cost 2,341 1,707
FIE R A Interest cost 614 550
NEFRHZFREEEL  Net actuarial losses recognised during the year 2,638 1,071
BB ERBEAR Negative past service cost 21) —

RERFRX Net expense for the year included

(BERETHRER) in administrative expenses 5,572 3,328
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BEIRAERE) 32. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (Continued)
RERAEI(E) Defined benefit plans (Continued)
AR TE/RERE The principal assumptions used for accounting purposes were:
AEBERAEAH
Group and Company
2012 2011
% %
Frig = Discount rate 3.75 1.75
T8 B 5 B -1 Expected rate of salary increases 10.00 10.00
RERBEFEZSTHUOT : Historical information:
I &HE
Group
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

FE7 FET e FET FET
Us$'000 Us$'000  US$000  USS000  US$000

FEREAN Present value of the defined
EERE benefit obligations 26,120 33,730 27,037 18,193 10,255
FEBEE Experience adjustments arising
R TR on plan liabilities (2,640) 5,093 (1,433) (903) 1,815
VNG
Company
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
FET FET FET FET FET
Uss‘000 Us$°000 Us$'000 Us$000 Us$000
FLE A Present value of the defined
EHEIRE benefit obligations 12,831 18,301 15,538 11,009 6,538
FrEAaEr Experience adjustments arising
KRR TR on plan liabilities (1,749) 2,458 (1,091) (485) 927
TEHEE B BN FER S FZTE The expected contributions to be paid to the plan during the
B £ 38 4 348,000 7T (20114 - annual period after the reporting period are US$348,000
248,000 ) ° (2011:U5$248,000).

20/2 Annual Report 3§ ‘ /67



/ BREMI5F Notes to the Financial Statements /

HZE2012F 12 A31BLLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2012

33. EEHE
AEBFRLEHAZLZMT

33. DEFERRED TAXATION

The movement for the year in the Group's net deferred tax
position was as follows:

rEH

Group
2012 2011
FET FEIT
Us$000 Us$’000
REH] At beginning of year 78,916 53,714
BN — ¥ERKE G Additions — business combination 14,767 —
fEH =R Exchange difference (152) —

T AERE W EE R A Charge to consolidated

income statement 34,161 25,202
REEH At end of the reporting period 127,692 78,916

NEER ECRAZELEREBEELRE Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities at the end of the
rafdEmT reporting period represent the followings:
rEE
Group
2012 2011
BE afE BE BfE
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
FET FET FETT FETT
Us$’000 Uss’000 US$°000 Us$°000
IERF S IT & Accelerated depreciation allowance — (43,498) — (36,544)
BRI E Decelerated depreciation allowance 296 — 296 —
(Batz Revaluation arisen from
B business combination:
-+ HIFAA)E(E © - Prepaid lease payments, property,
ME - HaEE R plant and equipment
i — (11,631) = —
- EBREE — Intangible assets — (7,344) — —
RIEEE Impairment losses 11,737 — 10,624 —
REBER Un-invoiced accrual
ZTEREM 21,336 — 32,088 —
HEWE - #ES  Unrealized profit on property,
RFHE2 plant and equipment
ARERHE 13,931 — 5,177 —
TEIRES Withholding tax — (113,127) — (92,649)
HAith Others 3,474 (2,866) 3,991 (1,899)
BELEBBREE Deferred tax assets (liabilities)
(B 50,774 (178,466) 52,176 (131,092)
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ELEBIE(E)

BEBECEMRESRE  INEREEK
MRPEMIINEREDEFESN
BB ZBIZBIR10% 89 B R ik 78 1R
Fio s EMN2008F 1 F1HEAE
& @ AR 2007F 12 A31 B4 44
25Tl 2 B FDE o m AP B BT R
ZHNBE IR & 2 T AR B SR Sk i [ AT
FEBWZE  TEARERE-
AEEBEATERS10% °

AEBERBSTHEMBLAR - B
PR KA E QAR 2007 F 1% BEE
T8 HATE AT R % 5k R A it 9 B BB A
50% MatiR BB EEFIEE & -
ERAEESPBENE QR AMES
50% 1A 2007 & 1& BRER 2 F)E K& B A
SENBAREEFSENBED
R F1& & A B AT BB 2 F) B 3 78 HR
] B RPETED B2 FIEA
BRIERDE - LLERBZFEIMIF o

ZERBNBARKREDL Z RS
FMERTERTITERT /& 113,127,0003
TT(20114 : 92,649,000 ) ° &
ERABAALEZERSEMNEE
BUESHENBRARIZEELS -
WA R RPN ESE - Bt
AR AVE BRI B4 o

Al
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DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

Pursuant to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends distributed to foreign
investors by the foreign investment enterprises established in
the PRC. The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and
applies to earnings accumulated after 31 December 2007. A
lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between PRC and jurisdiction of the foreign investors.

For the Group’s PRC subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled
entities, the applicable rate is 10%. Deferred tax liability is
provided on 50% of post-2007 earnings of the Group’s PRC
subsidiaries that are expected to be distributable in the foreseeable
future. The remaining 50% of post-2007 earnings of the Group’s
PRC subsidiaries and the earnings of the Group’s PRC associates
and jointly controlled entities, which are held indirectly through
PRC subsidiaries, that are not expected to be distributable in the
foreseeable future would be subject to additional taxation if they
are distributed.

The estimated withholding tax effects on the distribution of
these unremitted retained earnings were approximately of
US$113,127,000 (2071: US92,649,000). In the opinion of the
directors, these unremitted retained earnings, at the present time,
are required for financing the continuing operations of these
entities and no distribution to foreign investors would be made in
the foreseeable future. Accordingly, no provisions for additional
deferred taxation have been made.
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33. EERIE(E) 33. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)
NEFBWRERREEFHBEERERN The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of
FASE T - RS EE R AEED tax losses, which can be carried forward for five years from the
HZEEEEERBATARAREFRZ year in which the losses arose for offsetting against future taxable
Bl - REER @ BIERG income. The expiry year of tax losses without deferred tax assets
EECGELERBEERINAT provided at the end of the reporting date is as follows:

REH
Group
2012 2011
BB EE2HR FET FET
Tax loss expiring in us$’o0o Us$°000
2012 — 10,301
2013 16,173 6,826
2014 25,198 9,546
2015 92,854 11,508
2016 198,915 48,093
2017 96,271 =
429,411 86,274
34. EER 34. TRADE PAYABLES
REE VNN
Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011

FET TET FET TET
Uss‘ooo Us$'000 Uss‘ooo Us$°000

FE{TBR X Trade payables

F=F Due to third parties 966,068 892,788 2,192 2,154
BRAEEA LT Due to related parties 76,099 81,325 — —
SX=VAE Due to jointly controlled entities 1,128 — — —

1,043,295 974,113 2,192 2,154
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o RS RMA 90 FKER -

/ BRB K5t Notes to the Financial Statements /

HZE2012F 12 A31BIEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2012

34. TRADE PAYABLES (Continued)

The trade payables due to related parties are unsecured, interest-
free and with credit period of 90 days.

ENERAEEAREXEARGR 2 The ageing analysis of trade payables based on the invoice date at
BREE DM T ¢ the end of the reporting period is as follows:
rEE KA T
Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
FE7 FZET FET FETL
Uss$’000 Us$°000 Uss$’000 Us$°000
0-90 H 0 - 90 days 1,019,916 915,284 2,192 2,152
90 HEA E Over 90 days 23,379 58,829 — 2
1,043,295 974,113 2,192 2,154

PR BRFIATHIE M SIE -

The trade payables are denominated in the following currencies:

KEE KAT

Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
FET FET FET FET
Uss$’000 US$°000 Uss’000 US$'000
AR RMB 1,031,423 960,416 — —
ETT usD 9,680 11,543 — —
e NTD 2,192 2,154 2,192 2,154
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35. HMEMAR 35. OTHER PAYABLES

RE KAF
Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
HiiE FET TET FET TETT
Note  US$°000 Us$'000  US$’000 Us$000

TEWIE S Deposits received in advance 377,654 177,288 — —
Bl - 58N~ Accruals for transportation,
BEERZ promoting and

TE1R advertising expenses 340,726 221,937 — —
ERIER Salaries and welfare payables

SRR 133,075 84,887 — —
FEAT R A 5K Payables for purchase

of equipment 36,581 60,360 — =

HihJEREM  Other accruals 144,280 76,225 13,026 12,143
FEf 7 B85t A= Due to a related party — 707 — 707
mAE AR RH  Obligations arising from put options

5 HARE on shares of subsidiaries written

FrE42&fE  to non-controlling shareholders 22,749 — — —
PTAELRITE  Derivative financial instruments 35 (a) 19,074 — — —
Hith Others 36,153 39,591 5,798 137

1,110,292 660,995 18,824 12,987

FE < B RE B A B9 H b FE N 3 A = The other payable due to a related party was unsecured, interest-
Wi R MIRERER - free and repayable on demand.
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35. OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

(a) fi4E4mIA (a) Derivative financial instruments
B %% 77 BE IR M - FEBA R BE IR The Issued thion, FEBA CaIIIOption, FEBA Put Optipn,
- FEBASRSH IR 12 - OAZRSH C,),A P.ut thpn, QA .Call Optlon” and SgII-Down Option
BEHE - OARBEBEHE b tHE T ( Der|v.at|ve fmanoal mstrum.ents ) wer.e issued as.par.t of
R ([ FTE 2 B T A |) > 5 a cop5|derat|on tra.nsferred in the buslness. combination,
,Ef o o 2 A 5t i 2 details are set out in note 38 to the financial statements.
TT?{EE%%EH%%WRE The Derivative financial instruments are measured at fair
—# - AR BRINNT value estimated by an independent qualified professional
HwAME38 - ITESRT AN valuer in Hong Kong at the grant date. The major inputs
NABEREABYAERE into the models used for the value of the Issued Option,
HEMEMARETRME - R FEBA Call Option and FEBA Put Option as at the grant date
¥ H20124F3A31H ' & of 31 March 2012 were as follows:
HEDEITHERE - FEBARE
P% 4 K FEBA 23k A% # 18 =X 40
T
FEBARBIRER
FEBARR A IR 1€
BRTRRE FEBA Call Option
Issued Option and FEBA Put Option
BEREL Valuation model SEREHR & EER
Monte Carlo Spot-Forward
Simulation Model Parity Model
BHEEZDAEE Fair value of the underlying assets IEsTeREEL  KH%e 659 TSHBERTT -
HRROEITERRR BREFRE
US$956 million, after US$695 million,
the adjustment of the Top-up after the adjustment
Cash and minority discount of the Top-up Cash
TEE Exercise price BEITEETE  6BFn ELMAEE
7E2EEEL  FEERER65%E17.5%
*US$2.81 billion to US$600 million, with
US$3.72 billion growth rates of
the aggregate book
value of CBL, ranging
from 6.5% to 17.5% p.a
Z|Hi8 Time to maturity 3,59 38.78%F
3.59 years 38.78 years
ETERRLE USD Risk free rate 0.91% 3.29%
HEEEEREE (B Volatility of the underlying 35.43% N/A
asset's price in HKD
RE= Dividend yield 1.24% 0%
BRI\E/BIBEHEAE ZATREM  Probability of the termination/triggering iR 0%
event occur N/A
EEs DA EE Fair value of the options 19,074,000% 7T i
US$19,074,000 USS$ Nil
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35. HttlEAR(E)

(a) fTEEMIAE ()

e B BT RE R 2013F

10A31BXZRITTE &5
B8 1 TEER
INE 8478 R R 2013 F
10 A31HZ2#% % 20144 10
A31HBs A& EAE32E
3TFEET:
B ETERER20144
10 31 B 2% % 20154 10
A31HBs A& 8 AE37E
2FEET -

R #EF B201243H318 -
BEEBUESERBEMEMR
ROAR I IR # - OAR B IR
BRHETERRENAREER
REERTT ARETEERE
HAEENTEREA L MISE
B ARKEI BEEHEE
BRI BE R BT EL A o

E=RR MTESRITARS
HENAABEERTANA
REEIBEEAESR -
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35. OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

Derivative financial instruments (Continued)

* US$2.81 billion if the Issued Option is exercised on or before
31 October 2013;

US$3.23 billion if the Issued Option is exercised after 31
October 2013 but on or before 310ctober 2014; or

US$3.72 billion if the Issued Option is exercised after 31
October 2014 but on or before 310ctober 2015.

The fair values of OA Put Option, OA Call Option and Sell-
Down Option at the grant date of 31 March 2012 are
estimated to be US$ Nil as in the opinion of independent
qualified professional valuer that their exercise prices are
the fair market values of the underlying assets at the time
of exercise and the probability of the termination/triggering
event occur of the Derivative financial instruments is very
remote.

In the opinion of directors, the fair values of the Derivative
financial instruments at the end of the reporting period are
not materially different from their fair values at the grant
date.
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4R it 2 I AR IE S 36. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
2012 2011
e FZET
Us$000 Us$’000
R A B4 A Profit before taxation 827,892 662,976
FEEA Interest expenses 32,673 9,372
F B WA Interest income (48,405) (38,564)
PR A A Dividend income (1,595) (1,573)
e Depreciation 380,845 317,544
SHIEMHHE TEFIEE  Unfunded employee benefit obligations paid (2,089) (932)
T AR AV B 2 B R Amortisation on prepaid lease payments 6,346 3,697
BB E CBE Amortisation on intangible assets 566 —
HEYS  WBREMHZ  Loss (Gain) on disposal of property,
B8 (Yas) plant and equipment 3,791 (74)
HE—RIZEREZ Gain on disposal of a non-wholly owned
M A A & — R subsidiary and an associate
~al (AT 5 28 previously classified as held for sale
REFELEERE) <K — (39,175)
P - R RRERMERIE  Impairment loss on property,
plant and equipment 13,900 4,169
M - HeE KRB Reversal of impairment loss on property,
REEIEE D plant and equipment (3,487) (3,500)

AR EEYIEREEZE Fair value change in financial assets at
BIENESMEEANEZ  fair value through profit or loss

2 (80) 135
HENHEESH Loss on disposal of available-for-sale
BEZBE financial assets 4,656 —
JE(REE & N R A% /AR Share of results of associates and
& jointly controlled entities (3.966) —
Wi E WS (BB UWEE  Gain on bargain purchase, net of
BEERBEER) expenses related to acquisition (189,859) —
SER G E) 2 & Effect on exchange rate changes (13,793) 7,677
R AR AE B AR Recognition of equity-settled
X2 5RIA share-based payment 13,723 11,346
HFE 2 (#m)md (Increase) Decrease in inventories (43,342) 12,503
JFE T BR SR 2 38 I Increase in trade receivables (4,558) (21,017)
TR FRIE K E At FE U Decrease (Increase) in prepayments and
SRIAZ A (38 00) other receivables 242,811 (68,994)
JERBRF Z R > Decrease in trade payables (39,755) (163,205)
H b B~ FRIE 2 10 Increase in other payables 154,844 69,583
BFEEMFIEZEINCHD)  Increase (Decrease) in advance
payments from customers 15,091 (24,723)
HE M IETRENFER SR 2 Increase (Decrease) in other
0O ) non-current payables 218 (791)
FEFETRMEME Increase in present value of unfunded
RE 215 employee benefit obligations 5,572 2,899
REXBMERE Cash generated from operations 1,351,999 739,353
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37.

38.

FTEFRERS

FA RAERDERERA A
([ AN &R Iz |) 81T 5% B9 (D
MTES T ARFEWECBLAEE
BiEOKEBRE FEEARGREY
TERFTMIEE38 o

EBast

FATRLZRBE G

201111 A48 & 2 7 &
PepsiCo /& 1% & 7 H B &R ¥l % 75
BB BT T A T HE(E
MEEE R HE ) o RIS B R & HF
T - PepsiCo®) & & K B & 7l Far
East Bottlers (Hong Kong) Limited
([FEBJ) + A & H 3 H 45 & PepsiCo
R BEMEERRmEREBN S
HESTERAMERGERERA
Bl —RKARBIFZ2EMBAF -
LA #2 HR BZ A 8 £% qm (BVI) & BR A& &
(TEMEHm])  —ERHELEER
B RS IR AR A R 9.5% M E
i o STAME 0 FEB 45 B RENE
BRmERS% M EEZ - BE L
(¥BaMNFANTERER AR
20124 1 A 20 H AT % H &9 38 (1 A 5]
BH o

BESBE R L HEE N 20123 A31 H
(MR TEK - NEREBEBIKE
£ PepsiCo FAH B K 35 M5 81 Gh
ML Z China Bottlers (Hong
Kong) Limited([CBL]) 2z 22 #e 2k &
5 2 M T BRAS 4R il 4 o E itk - CBLAX
AEMERMIEROZEN B A A
RARBINEEIEZEMB AR -

37.

38.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the consideration for the acquisition of the entire
equity interest in CBL was satisfied by the issuance of 5% shares
of Tingyi-Asahi Beverages Holding Co., Ltd. ("TAB") and the
Derivative financial instruments. Details are set out in note 38 to
the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS COMBINATION

Business combination occurred during the year

On 4 November 2011, the Company and PepsiCo Inc. (“PepsiCo”)
entered into agreements for their strategic alliance in beverage
business in the PRC (the "Strategic Alliance Arrangements”).
Under the Strategic Alliance Arrangements, PepsiCo’s wholly-
owned subsidiary, Far East Bottles (Hong Kong) Limited (“FEB")
has agreed to contribute its entire equity interest in PepsiCo’s non-
alcoholic beverage bottling business in the PRC to TAB, a non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, in exchange for a 9.5%
direct equity interests in Master Kong Beverage (BVI) Co. Ltd.
(“MKB"), which is a holding company of the Group's beverage
business in the PRC. As a consequence, FEB holds 5% indirect
equity interest in TAB, details of this business combination are set
out in the circular of the Company dated 20 January 2012.

On 31 March 2012 (“date of acquisition”), the Strategic Alliance
Arrangements was completed. TAB has obtained the control
of CBL which owns equity interest in PepsiCo’s non-alcoholic
beverage bottling business in the PRC by acquiring the entire
equity interest and voting rights in CBL. As a result, CBL has
become a wholly-owned subsidiary of TAB and an indirect non
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.
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FATELZFFEG(E)

BIRER R g R ER M
BRRBRXREEHE HERDH
PepsiCo FAHP B A FE)F 18 R (R B 2 25
T o 7K 5 [2| 78 H £ PepsiCo 2 B B
Bt BB 1% B2 24 /5 T 45 7 SR BT B0 37 B
mh * £ PepsiCo B2 R B &Y fm 18 48
ZHERREH BT HEEETN
EmEE o

BERME

BRI R R 5 R E R ME
IR B 8517 52,637 F A ARAR 17 T BRED
M  MEMERME 175,263
LIBARAR D T FEB  TEAK & » LAZELT
BROIERBREIREBERAEER
R ERRIERFENEREZS
50.005% 3 7 £47.5125% © it 8
AR R E R R ERMmE9.5%
T 2 DA R AR B I B PR BR A B8R 15
B 2.4925% S °

FEBE W& T —HA®E ([F17H
HE 1) DAHS B 5 45 A R AD (3 8k o 1%
B HAS%EEL20% (EE
EBEEAE) o

Itk 9+ PepsiCo & H = & Kf B 2 &
The Concentrate Manufacturing
Company of Ireland (%78 ([ PepsiCo
SE ) ERMERDIERE T ZBER
ERIERW - BN AT - FEB
B pepsiCo NE AT Z HitE % - B
e TRIESAE B - S RTT(E
ATERRE - FFRT -
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BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

Business combination occurred during the year (Continued)

Under the Strategic Alliance Arrangements, TAB is exclusively
responsible for manufacturing, selling and distributing PepsiCo’s
non-alcoholic beverage bottling business in the PRC. The Group
expects that the strategic alliance with PepsiCo will bring
innovative new products to market faster across PepsiCo and the
Company brand offerings and improve choice for consumers.

Consideration transferred

Pursuant to the Strategic Alliance Arrangements, TAB has issued
52,637 ordinary shares to MKB and MKB has issued 5,263
ordinary shares to FEB. Consequently, the issuance of shares
of the Company’s subsidiaries for the consideration transferred
caused that the Group's effective equity interest in TAB decreased
from 50.005% to 47.5125%. A deemed disposal of 9.5% equity
interest in MKB as well as a deemed disposal of 2.4925% equity
interest in TAB was resulted.

FEB was granted an option (“Issued Option”) to increase its
indirect interest in TAB from 5% to 20% on a fully diluted basis.

In addition, PepsiCo and The Concentrate Manufacturing
Company of Ireland (“CMCI"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
PepsiCo (collectively, the “PepsiCo group”) and TAB have entered
into Framework Exclusive Bottling Agreement (“FEBA”) and the
Company, FEB and PepsiCo have entered into Option Agreements
("OA"). These options could be executed only when certain
termination/triggering events occur, the details are as follows:-
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38. ¥¥A6(E)

BERAMIE (H)

—  PepsiCoRBEEHET —ER
EHE (FEBARBHIRE]) -
EHIRE TRIEEME - R
B8R G IR RR T LATT 1 SR A8 HA 4
EAMNEERELEZSEE
FA P A EE Bk B /R /K (TCSD ) 3k
PepsiCoR B E T 2 T HEE
mEEE R,

- FEHESRSERE®RET— -

B Roh B ([FEBARR JH &
L BEHIRETRIEEH
B » PepsiCose B & M 17 £
REHAEZANEOAER
EZETZRARNEECDXK
PepsiCok B H T« FFar =
M EE R, HEGE

— ZARFRERTFEB—IERBH
# ([OAREH®E]) - FHIA
BEEHE  ARAREAT
MERE EFEB R AN &8 M &
5% R 188 8% PR AR BT 15 2 22 BP AR
#

— ARRDHEERT -ERHHE
(TOARIEHEARE]) - B H I
HEMR FEBREEAFME
th B EL 10 R Bl 18 8K am % R D 1
BRan TR AT 2 2 REAHE

— AREMEHRRT-BEHET -

PREAME - EHIBHE TRAE
B E 1% » FEB 2% PepsiCo
= D H A ER AT AR S R AR T
2 BRAE -
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38. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

Consideration transferred (Continued)

PepsiCo group was granted a call option (“FEBA Call
Option”). TAB is required to sell assets and/ or undertakings
primarily used in the production of CSD or products licensed
to PepsiCo group at the aggregate book value of the assets
being acquired at the date of exercise of FEBA Call Option
upon the occurrence of any termination events;

TAB was granted a put option (“FEBA Put Option”).
PepsiCo group is required to buy assets and/or undertakings
primarily used in the production of CSD or products licensed
from TAB at the aggregate book value of the assets being
acquired at the date of exercise of FEBA Put Option upon
the occurrence of any termination events;

The Company granted FEB a put option (“OA Put Option”).
The Company is required to buy all of FEB's equity interest
in MKB and TAB at fair market value after the occurrence of
put triggering events;

The Company was granted a call option (“OA Call Option”).
FEB is required to sell all of its equity interest in MKB
and TAB at fair market value after the occurrence of call
triggering events; and

The Company was also granted a sell-down option (“Sell-
Down Option”). FEB/PepsiCo is required to sell its equity
interests in TAB to the Company after the occurrence of sell-
down triggering events.
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38. EBEHE) 38. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

BERME (H)

NI RERZKE  UEREEAR
RN EBEEE AERBERD

Consideration transferred (Continued)

The following summarises the consideration transferred and the
amounts of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed, as well as

HREERNSHE : the amount of non-controlling interests recognised at the date of
acquisition:
AREE
Fair value
FET
US$°000
EHECNRE: Consideration transferred:
BARBEEITS% R ER R
i i an) Issuance of 5% shares of TAB, at fair value 390,291
BARBEETITASRIE Issuance of Derivative financial instruments, at fair value 19,074
e s KB Total consideration transferred 409,365

FRANE R RIERR 5% B’ MDA AR E
BEHEBEYAEREXGHERMER
WHRBESREDTEEMS - T3]
REeEREDMEEREMBERRIETE
B% & 12 I i 5T AN 4k A9 B AT (8 8R &
TRE2012F £ 2018 F M mETE
BlFTE - BRAFHMBSRERL
BRI REI%FTHEY - FEAM
AR I AR T 48 & B E TS R g R
ErSBARPAFHERE - £78
BHRNERANERERERNETERE
HETERAE R mIER TR -
FEANTRBESRENREXAR
1% + R T & BT 5 89 BR AN 8 &R
miEAR B H R B E E AR bR R o

BEEEEARR TOTESR T
ERBAAREBETE  FBHARY
TR A EE 35(a) ©

The fair value of 5% shares of TAB was valued by an independent
qualified professional valuer using the discounted cash flow
analysis. The discounted cash flow analysis is based on the cash
flow projection of TAB from 2012 to 2018 as estimated and
approved by the management of TAB. Cash flows beyond the
five-year period are extrapolated using the estimated long term
growth rate at 3%. The growth rate does not exceed the long-
term average growth rate for the beverage business in which TAB
operates. The growth rate adopted during the projection period
is based on the expected performance of TAB as estimated by the
management. The discount rate applied to the discounted cash
flow is 11% that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to TAB.

Derivative financial instruments granted under the Strategic
Alliance Arrangements are measured at fair value, details are set
out in the note 35(a) to the financial statements.
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38. EBEHE) 38. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

PR & E RATRIERR &

Assets acquired and liabilities assumed

AREE
Fair value
FET
Us$’000
BN AR EER Recognised amounts of identifiable
FIAENEBRRASE assets acquired and liabilities assumed:
I - IR AR Property, plant and equipment 487,353
THAR AR B Prepaid lease payments 65,669
EBIZEE Intangible assets 29,377
Bt Nl RE s Interests in associates 19,639
EX-UNSIE £ Interests in jointly controlled entities 47,199
EEFHIBEE Deferred tax assets 4,208
BekERIAELER Cash and cash equivalents 151,264
JFEE M5 R 5k B EL A e KRR TR Trade and other receivables 186,329
FE Inventories 118,912
FE S E Indemnification assets 172,622
JE A~ BR R N EL At B Y 5RIB Trade and other payables (365,248)
RITRHEMEER Bank and other borrowings (254,616)
FIEFIE B F Deferred tax liabilities (18,975)
A EEEATE Total identifiable net assets 643,733
DERERKR Non-controlling interests (16,541)
W EE R Gain on bargain purchase (217,827)
s KE Total consideration transferred 409,365
FETT
Us$°000
WM B A RIMNE S RFEE - Net cash flow on acquisition of subsidiaries:
WS B A B FT S M ER1T &2
& &5 Bank and cash balances acquired from subsidiaries 151,264
EHWENERZER Direct expenses relating to the acquisition (27,968)
123,296
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PR B ERITRIEHR & (8)

XBEOMRBHRBRIEE - PT
EENRERMEZERDZCD ER
M B IMARMEE 7 2[R o B -

EREERERTERTAEEI
BROAEERERN  EPBEBE—
ERFEmENE Kf 8K 5
5 % $H & PepsiCo Ay CSD FI{ES 44 5
BWER WRAABEAMTE -
HERERSIBA T ER SRR MR 16 o

RULEE B+ FE U AR 51 & H i FE IR
B AR BB A 186,329,000 T °
U B - FE YRR TR % H i FE IR
THH) & 44 & 58 /189,795,000
Too MEIEERIR 2 5 AR RN
W A 2 &= b5 £ % /A 3,466,000
ZETT °

38.

/ BRB K5t Notes to the Financial Statements /

HZE2012F 12 A31BLLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2012

BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

Assets acquired and liabilities assumed (Continued)

The identifiable assets acquired, liabilities assumed and the gain
on bargain purchase resulted in the business combination have
been recognised in “Beverages” segment in note 7 to the financial
statements.

The intangible assets represent concession rights granted to
the Group for manufacturing, bottling, packaging, distributing
and selling PepsiCo’s CSD and Gatorade branded products on a
royalty free basis under a specific trademark in the PRC, which
are measured at fair value, details are set out in note 16 to the
financial statements.

The fair value of trade and other receivables at the date of
acquisition amounted to US$186,329,000. The gross contractual
amounts of those trade and other receivables acquired amounted
to US$189,795,000 at the date of acquisition. The best estimate
at the date of acquisition of the contractual cash flows not
expected to be collected amounted to US$3,466,000.
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HZE2012F 12 A31BLLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2012

38.

EXa6(E)

P B ER TR & (8)

R B RSB BB 2 HE + PepsiCoRIE H
EEMN CBLH 2 BRI - 23R
RKERKRAEEEFEARA00H
BETT MEHEEARN2012F3
A3 BBEEAEEEFEC0HT
EXTHNCE - BREF AN
THRE REBEENREEEER
172,622,000 37T °

7R SR B 5K A R B 5] 0 1A R B Y
AR EERBEFEDBBRE

fm ©

REBE HATHTER 217,827,000 3
TRKEREREIEERRET
REMERMIEREE  EAREE
AT kI EREREDER
R B4R G W s & P A H e &
HiFWBAR o

FREABREXEANEMERE
27,968,000 ST M X 5 X A B
REZREFTNR UHERAE
AEEEARARAZ FREZEENR
=(ENKREBEEREBER) A
189,859,000 £ LA + BRI A & EA
bRE B RS AR R R R A H W e &k B
o SFUAA o

38.

BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

Assets acquired and liabilities assumed (Continued)

Pursuant to the Strategic Alliance Arrangements, PepsiCo has
agreed to contribute its entire equity interest in CBL with adjusted
net asset value of US$600 million at the date of acquisition.
Indemnification assets represent the excess of US$600 million
over the adjusted net asset value of CBL as s 31 March 2012.
The amount of the indemnification assets was finally determined
through arm’s length negotiation between the parties at
US$172,622,000.

The Group has selected to measure the non-controlling interests
at its proportionate interest in the identifiable assets and liabilities
of the acquiree.

The gross gain on bargain purchase of US$217,827,000 arising
from the business combination is mainly attributable to decline in
fair value of issuance of TAB shares. The gain from this bargain
purchase was recognised in “Other revenue and other net
income” in the consolidated income statement.

The transaction costs relating to legal and professional fees and
other charges of US$27,968,000 have been excluded from the
consideration transferred and have been recognised as expenses
including in the Company’s net gain on bargain purchase of
approximately US$189,859,000 within the “Other revenue and
other net income” in the consolidated income statement.
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PR B ERITRIEHR & (8)

RIELERMERDIZERBRA A
24925% v IR BERE R WA B K
KREZHIE EE  REERZE
BAKR - REHEER - EAEG
%I A R A A §Y2.4925% A% #E
= 2 BR M {8 5 224,743,000 T °
IR EZ S DBR R ESEM T
224,743,000 7T o AR R 7 18
A&y &R 17 B ERE (B 2 A A B 2 [A
B 2= 2 4 165,548,000 37T - DHER
MR B ARG B AR R R 2 )
REmRE BB RERR S
R o

BEBEHE  HRBEEHEES
Z BEA1,143,401,000 35 7T M 4 Uk
BEHAZARRBRREEHEBRS
AEBE#FHZE2012F12 318 1L
MZ BB TEKX °

EMR2012F3A3MBERZ £7
AEHELEEVNRELE  AEEAF
E B W 2% & 59,629,446,000 3 T
W BAARARRQ AR EEE =S58
455,171,000 E T T8 B & X%
ZoBEEHERFAZCARTE
PAASENEL & FEMER -
KR EE2012F1 A1 B TR BT
EFRETERIRREELE o

/ BRB K5t Notes to the Financial Statements /

HZE2012F 12 A31BLLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2012

38. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

Assets acquired and liabilities assumed (Continued)

The deemed disposal of 2.4925% equity interest in TAB that
do not result in the loss of control is accounted for as equity
transaction. The carrying amount of the 2.4925% equity interest
in TAB on the date of disposal was US$224,743,000. As a result of
the deemed disposal, the non-controlling interests was increased
by US$224,743,000, and the difference of US$165,548,000
between the amount by which the non-controlling interests
have increased and the fair value of the consideration received
was recognised in equity and attributable to the owners of
the Company, which was recorded in “Transactions with non-
controlling interests reserve” within the equity in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

Since the business combination, the revenue contributed by the
acquiree amounted to US$1,143,401,000 and the net results
attributable to the owners of the Company contributed by the
acquiree was not significant to the Group for the year.

If the business combinations effected on 31 March 2012 had
taken place at the beginning of the year, the Group’s revenue
for the year would have been US$9,629,446,000 and the profit
attributable to owners of the Company would not have materially
different from US$455,171,000 for the year. The proforma
information is for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily
an indication of the turnover and results of operations of the
Group that actually would have been achieved had the acquisition
been completed on 1 January 2012, nor is intended to be a
projection of future results.
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39. EEFEBMALIZEARS 39. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
BRI EEMBOEZREZRS M In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere
BRFELASN - AR Jh 2N £ [E A B in the financial statements, the Group entered into the following
ATETZEARSGHE  HER material related party transactions in the ordinary course of the
STIRAEE 2 HEEEPET - Group's business.

2012 2011
Htat FET FETT
Note uUss$‘ooo US$°000
(a) BABALTZRES (a) Related party transactions
BRI ATRHEEER : Sales of goods to:
KRR EERFIZES Companies controlled by a
A AL VNG substantial shareholder
of the Company (i) 20,158 6,774
NG Associates 16,409 —
EX-WNC] Jointly-controlled entities 28,024 —
AR ARBESR : Purchases of
goods from:
ER-WNE| Jointly-controlled entities 21,408 —
RRRIZES Companies jointly controlled
HFEFES 2 A F) by the Company’s directors (i) 45,880 15,437
KRR EEREEE A group of companies jointly
HEZES 2 —4HAF] controlled by the
Company's directors and
their dependent 0) 420,959 205,459
| %A R HEBG Proceed from the disposal
AHHEESREE of part of available-
for-sale financial assets:
RAREZRE A substantial shareholder
of the Company 0) 63,323 —
Mizk () BIE EMHEBISE14AE - % %E Note (i) These related party transactions also constitute connected
BEMAT X ZINABERS transactions and continuing connected transactions as defined in
R ERER S o Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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39. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

39, BEREBMALZEARG (&) (Continued)
2012 2011
FET FETT
Uss$’000 Us$°000
(b) BAEER B4R (b) Related party balances
P BB A L Z RN ¢ Trade payables due to
related parties:
BENT Jointly-controlled entity 1,128 —
AARZEELRLEH 2AE  Companies jointly controlled by
the Company'’s directors 11,872 3,512
AR EERELE A group of companies jointly
HEES 2 —4H 1A controlled by the Company's
directors and their dependent 59,387 73,099
ARElz EEREESZ2AF A company controlled by a substantial
shareholder of the Company 4,840 4,714
77,227 81,325

() Key management personnel remuneration:
() HREBASZHE

Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group,

AEEHEBREEABZHE including amounts paid to the Company’s directors and
(BIEWFEI10FHEER AR A certain of the highest paid employees as disclosed in note
EEXfzREERRNETES 10, is as follows:
FREINZFB)NT -
2012 2011
FET FETT
Uss$000 Us$°000
EEME Directors’ fees 630 630
FehkEMmie Salaries and other emoluments 4,136 3,600
VARR 1 321+ 2 5/ 78 Share-based payments 4,458 7,009
1EAL Discretionary bonuses 804 1,213
RINMRBERT B3R Retirement scheme contribution 21 13
10,049 12,465
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40.

EXRER
AEEEREANBERERREAS
BRESFFERLE MR IREMR

190 % E A ) S5 AE A SR G 2% -

AEEBERAEEELRKERE
A(BREEED) BEEELR
MWETETERAFREGIER EE
ENBRRe MRSSEMIERER
FIRREMLESEZLE  INEA
BaoZBHRARE - REER - &
IR EFHBERNZLL R

40.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders.

The Group monitors its capital, which comprises all equity
components, using a gearing ratio which is calculated on the basis
of net debt (interest bearing borrowings net of cash and cash
equivalents) as a ratio of the equity attributable to owners of the
Company as disclosed in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity. The debt-to-adjusted capital ratios at the end of the
reporting period were as follows:

AEME P N

Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
FET FET FET FET
Us$’000 Us$'000 Us$’000 Us$'000
BEEE Interest-bearing borrowings 1,484,472 1,250,077 814,136 410,000
W BEMIREEY  Less: Cash and cash equivalents (837,898) (600,052) (34,401) (6,396)
FAaE Net debt 646,574 650,025 779,735 403,604
AATRRFELEZ  Total equity 2,550,933 2,099,745 287,455 305,364
FABEENRLE Gearing ratio 25.35% 30.96% 271.25% 132.17%

REBRBEERRAOLE - BB
BRUERBES M FERRER -
BRIRERE - BBRERETH
& BRERRS REEEARR
Bottih AEBEEZERMS L
BITHERME - BROEAFX
REREHS -

ANEBR2012FE R RIET & o 1t
20MERE NEB KRB BE
RIFEEBREART - AKEMEE
BEL LT A2011FE B
30.96% RFEZE 20124 #)25.35% -
THRORAEZAERRINEIERE
MEBARMSREEREFTEM -
A & B #))F B ERFEE 2011 F AN
2012 F AR B ERE(L o NAF]
MEEBBRI2011F8132.17%
FEENE2012F M 271.25% ° £
TRANFEREEIT T EHEAME -

AEEMORITHEBAETE TR
TR 5 R

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance
and makes adjustments to capital structure according to changes in
economic conditions for achieving its objectives through payment
of dividends, share repurchase and issue of new debt. Changing
of borrowing rate in the market, future capital expenditures and
investment opportunities are taken into consideration.

During 2012, the Group's strategy, which was unchanged from
2011, was aimed at maintaining the net debt approximately to
nil balance. The slight decrease in the Group's gearing ratio from
30.96% in 2011 to 25.35% in 2012 was primarily due to the
increase in equity resulting from the recognition of a deemed
disposal of interests in a subsidiary during the year, where the net
debt balances of the Group in 2011 and 2012 were not materially
changed. The significant increase in the Company's gearing ratio
from 132.17% in 2011 to 271.25% in 2012 was primarily resulted
from the issuance of notes during the year.

Some of the Group's banking facilities are subject to financial
covenants requirements imposed by certain banks.
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HZE2012F 12 A31BLLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2012

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s financial instruments expose it to foreign currency
risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and price risk. The
Board of Directors generally adopts conservative strategies on its
risks management and limits the Group’s exposure to these risks
to a minimum. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies
for managing each of these risks and they are summarised below:

Foreign currency risk

The majority of the subsidiaries of the Group are operated in the
PRC and most of their transactions are denominated in RMB.
The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily through
payable on capital expenditures, purchases, bank balances,
borrowings, available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss that are denominated in
currencies other than the functional currency of the subsidiaries.

The exchange rate of RMB against US$ is subject to the rules
and regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the
PRC government. The Group did not have significant exposure to
foreign exchange risk and has not hedged its foreign exchange
risk because the subsidiaries of the Group mainly earn their profits
in RMB and the value of RMB has been appreciating against US$
in recent past years.

Details of the Group's available-for-sale financial assets, financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, bank balances, interest-
bearing borrowings and trade payables denominated in US$,
RMB, NTD, EUR and JPY as at 31 December 2012 and 2011 are
set out in notes 21, 22, 27, 31 and 34 respectively.

At the end of the reporting period, if the exchange rates of RMB
/ US$, RMB / NTD, RMB / EUR and RMB / JPY had strengthened /
weakened by 1.9%, 8.5%, 9.5% and 11.6% respectively (2077
5%, 9%, 8% and 1% respectively) with all other variables held
constant, the Group’s profit for the year and retained profits
would have been US$19,648,000 (2071: US$50,316,000) higher /
lower.
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41.
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41.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group's interest-bearing borrowings.
Interest- bearing borrowings with floating interest rates and fixed
interest rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk and
fair value interest rate risk respectively. The Group has not hedged
its cash flow and fair value interest rate risk. The Group's policy is
to manage its interest cost using a mix of fixed and floating rate
debts and monitors closely its interest rate exposure and the level
of fixed rate and floating rate borrowings, in consideration of
economic atmosphere and the strategies of the Group.

The interest-bearing borrowings with fixed interest rates are
mainly related to the Notes issued during the year. Its fair value
will rise or fall when market interest rates decrease or increase.
However, as the Notes are stated at amortised cost; changes in
market interest rates will not affect their carrying amounts and the
Group's profit or loss and retained profits.

Regarding the cash flow interest rate risk, at the end of the
reporting period, if interest rates had been 10 (2011: 10) basis
point higher/lower and all other variables were held constant, the
Group’s profit for the year and retained profits would decrease/
increase by US$840,000 (2011: US$1,200,000).

Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to pledged bank
deposits, cash and cash equivalent, trade and other receivables.
Substantially all of the Group’s and the Company’s pledged bank
deposits and cash and cash equivalents were deposited in the
creditworthy global financial institutions and state-controlled
financial institutions in the PRC, which management considers
they are without significant credit risk.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The majority of the Group's sales are conducted on a cash
basis. The Group has implemented policies to ensure that sales
of products are made to direct retailers, who wish to trade on
credit terms, with an appropriate credit history which is subject to
periodic reviews. Individual credit evaluations are performed on
all customers requiring credit over a certain amount. Receivable
balances are monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group's
exposure to bad debts is not significant.

The credit risk of the Group’s other receivables arises from default
of the counterparties, with a maximum exposure equal to the
carrying amounts of these receivables. The credit quality of the
counterparties is assessed by taking into account their financial
position, credit history and other factors. Individual credit limits
are set based on the assessment of the credit quality. Given the
repayment history, the directors are of the opinion that the risk of
default by these counterparties is not significant. At the end of the
reporting period, the Group had no significant concentration of
credit risk, with exposure spread over a number of counterparties.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had a
concentration of credit risk as 98% (2077: 97%) of the total
amounts due from subsidiaries was due from the five largest
subsidiaries.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s objectives when managing liquidity risk are to
maintain sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed
credit facilities to the Group. Also, the Group's policy is to
regularly monitor current and expected liquidity requirements,
in particular relating to capital expenditure and repayments of
debts. At the end of the reporting period, the Board of Directors
expected that the Group had no significant liquidity risk in the
near future. Details of the preparation of financial statements on a
going concern basis are set out in note 2.
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4. TREREEGE) 41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
FBELSEB(Z) Liquidity risk (Continued)
AEECSRHEBEREEREAY The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities at the end of
FEI A T 6 THIR IR A 4 kBRI the reporting period based on contractual undiscounted payments
EREIIRIAT ¢ are summarised below:
TEE
Group

1FE R 15 E 2B
BRERER EBE2FA EHESER
Within More than More than

1 year 1year 2 years but
oron butless less than a&t
demand than 2 years 5 years Total

FET FET FET FET
Uss‘000 Us$°000 Us$°000 Uss‘ooo

72012612 31 H At 31 December 2012

JE - BR X Trade payables 1,043,295 — — 1,043,295
H b A 5k 8 Other payables 1,068,469 — — 1,068,469

A DB R B Obligations arising from
Rod HAREFTEE A& put options on shares of

ZEE subsidiaries written to

non-controlling shareholders 22,749 — —_ 22,749
PTESBMITA Derivative financial instruments 19,074 — — 19,074
BEEEE Interest-bearing borrowings 529,270 488,346 570,714 1,588,330
HMIERBAE Other non-current liabilities — — 220 220
2,682,857 488,346 570,934 3,742,137

2011412 A31H At 31 December 2011
FERTERRR Trade payables 974,113 — — 974,113
H fth fE < 58 Other payables 660,995 — — 660,995
EEEE Interest-bearing borrowings 709,611 112,901 450,160 1,272,672
2,344,719 112,901 450,160 2,907,780
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41, SREBEEZE) 41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
REELER(E) Liquidity risk (Continued)
PN
Company
15 R 158 E 2F B E
RERER BE2FA EBESEA
Within More than More than
1 year 1 year 2 years
oron but less but less &t
demand than 2 years than 5 years Total
FET FET FET FET
Uss$000 Uss‘o0o Uss‘o00 Uss‘000
#2012% 12 A31H At 31 December 2012
FEFTHIEBAFIZIE  Due to subsidiaries 43,724 — — 43,724
FE S BRFK Trade payables 2,192 — — 2,192
H fth fE 508 Other payables 18,824 — — 18,824
S B BB A Amount due to related parties — — — —
BEEE Interest-bearing borrowings 72,522 292,146 541,455 906,123
137,262 292,146 541,455 970,863
72011412 A31H At 31 December 2011
FESHIEARIFKIE  Due to subsidiaries 50,513 — — 50,513
JEBRFR Trade payables 2,154 — — 2,154
H M fE R 5RIE Other payables 12,280 — — 12,280
FES B B AL Amount due to related parties 707 — — 707
EEEE Interest-bearing borrowings 205,935 35,389 175,663 416,987
271,589 35,389 175,663 482,641
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4. cREBEEE) 41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
FEELRER(E) Liquidity risk (Continued)
b N/NC]
Company
1ERZ 150 26
RERER (BE2FARA EESFR
Within More than More than
1 year 1 year 2 years
or on but less but less a5
demand than 2 years than 5 years Total
FET FET FET FET
Uss$’000 Uss’000 Us$000 Us$’000
B2 2 B &R Financial guarantees issued:
BEEHz&ES Maximum amounted guaranteed
B IR IR
R2012 4 At 31 December 2012
12H31H 17,577 — — 17,577
R 20114 At 31 December 2011
12HA31H 105,000 — — 105,000

REER  ANARAE TMWENEB
RAZEEERELVRER £
%H /210,000,000 JT(20114F -
150,000,000%7C ) - EE R B A
BERRAAQRAZREZHESE -
ARARGEERERABR%ZS
2EMBRARIBHAZER &5
#&17,577,000% JT (20114 -
105,000,000 %) °

ERBEEEETI AP REBBARER -
E=ZRR/RBAEFVBRERZIAA
EBEIIBEELTAIT UK
BRAERINEBERARRZHHR

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has issued
financial guarantees in respect of credit facilities to two
subsidiaries of US$210,000,000 (2071: US$150,000,000). The
directors do not consider it is probable that a claim will be made
against the Company under the guarantees. The maximum liability
of the Company at the end of the reporting period under the
guarantees issued is the facility drawn down by the subsidiaries of
US$17,577,000 (2011: US$105,000,000).

Due to the related party nature of the instruments, the directors
considered it not meaningful and practicable to estimate the fair
values of the financial guarantees and therefore they have not
been recognised in the Company'’s statement of financial position.
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Fair value

(a)

Financial instruments carried at fair value

The following table presents the c